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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Your directors present their report together wilh the financial report for Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited (“the
Company”) and the consolidated entity consisting of Suncorp Lite & Superannuation Limited and its controlled entities (“the
consolidated entity”) for 1he year ended 30 June 2006.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of the Company during the whole of the financial year and Lp to the date of this report:

John D Story (Chairman) (Appointed | December 1996)

John F Muleahy (Managing Director) {Appointed 6 January 2003)

William ) Bartlett (Appoined 1 July 2003)

Dr lan D Blackburne {Appointed 3 August 2000)

Rodney F Cormie (Appointed | December 1996) (Resigned 26 October 2005)
Dr Cherrell Hirst AO (Appointed 8 February 2002)

James J Kennedy AQ, CBE (Appointed 1 Avgust 1997)

Martin D E Kriewaldt (Appointed 14 June 1996)

Christopher Skitton (Executive Director) (Appointed |3 November 2002)

Dr Zygmunt L Switkowski (Appointed 19 September 2005)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activitics of the consolidated entity during the course of the year were (he provision of life insurance,

superannuation and funds management products and related services lo the retail, corporate and commercial sectors. There
were no significant changes in the nature of the activities carried out by the consolidated entity during the year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated profin from ordinary activities after income tax altributable to equity holders of the parent for the year ended 30
June 2006 was $60.7 million (2005: $58.6 miilion). Current year profit benefited from the increase in equity markets.

Premiums for the year were $807.9 million (2005: $622.4 million). which included $101.5 million (2005: $92.7 million) of
pobicy conversions transferring between statutory funds. The increase in premium is due (o the increase in new business in the
current year togcther with better reiention rates.

Total consolidated assets increased from $4.805.2 million (o0 $6.163.1 million. This is due to increased investment eamings as
well as the inclusion of additional controlled unit trusts in the current year with assets of $763.7 million

The financial strength of our business is reflected by the coverage of the Solvency Ruserve as set by the Life Insurance
Actuarial Standards Board (LIASB). The coverage of the Solvency Reserve for the Statutory Funds at 2.6 at 30 June 2006
(2005: 2.6) has been maintained at a high level throuzhout the year.

Total distributions of profis to participating policyowners increased over the year. The prospects for participaling
policyowners remain very sound given the financizal position of our Capital Guaranteed Fund and the current and prospective

profhability of the fund. The capital adcquacy position of the fund remains very strong and provides significant security fo
the guarantees being offered.

DIVIDENDS
Since the end of the year the directors have recommended the payment of a fina? dividend as follows:
A 2006 final dividend of $1.282 per ordinary share (2005 $1.026), amounting tc 350 million (2005: 40 million).

The ageregate amount of the proposed dividend expected 1o be paid at a date to be set is not recognised in the balance sheets.




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
DIRECTORS® REPORT (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN YHE STATE OF AFFAIRS

in 1he opinion of the dircctors there were no significant changes in the state of afTairs of the Company that occurred during the
financial year under review.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, any item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, to affect significantly the
operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future

years.
LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
There has been no substantial change in business operations and none are expeécted in the coming financial year.

Further information on the likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations
in future years have not been included in this report because the directors believe il would be likely to result in unreasonable

prejudice to the Company.
ENVIRONMENTAL REGU!LATION

The operations of the consolidated entity are not subject 1o any particutar and significant environmental regulation under any
law of the Commonwealth of Australia or any of the States or Territories.

The consolidated entity has not incurred any hability (including rectification costs) undcer any environmental legislation.

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the financial year ended 30 June 2006, the ultimate parent entity of the Company has paid insurance premiums in
respect of a Directors® and Officers’ Liability insurance contract. The contcact insures each person who is or has been a
Director or executive officer (as defined in the Corporations Act 2001) of the Company against cerain liabilities arising in the
course of their duties to the Company. The Directors have not included details ot the nature of the liabiliies covered or the
amount of premium paid in respect of the insurance contract as disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the contract.

INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS

Under the uitimate parent entity's Constitution, the ultimate parent entity, Suncorp-Melway Ltd, indemnifics each person who
15 or has been a Dircctor or officer of the Company. The indemnity relates (o all liabilities to another party (other than the
Company or a related body corporate) that may arise in connection with the performance of their duties to the Company and
its controlled entities, except where Lhe liability arises out of conduct involving a lack of good faith. The Constitution
stipulates that the ultlimate parent entity will meet the full amount of such liabilitics, including costs and expenscs incurred in
successfully defending civil or criminal proccedings, or in connection with an application in relation to such proceudings, 1n
which relief is erunted under the Corporations Act 2001
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SUCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
For the pear ended 30 June 2006

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Aundit Conunitice

The members of the Audit Commiuttee at the end of the financial year are:
W J Bartlet (Chairman)

I D Blackbume

R F Cormie

Dr C Hirst

1) Kennedy

M D E Kriewaldt

J D Swory

Dr Z E Switkowski

The primary role of this Commmittee is to assist the board in fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities with respect to
oversight of the Company’s financial and operational contro) environment.

At all times throughout the reporting period, the members of the Audit Commiittee, as detailed above, were independent, non-
executive directors. To further enhance the independence of the audit functions, (both internal and external) there were no
management representatives on the committee during the year, however the Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, and
the internal and extemal auditor are invited to committee meetings at the discrction of the commiltee.

The commitlec also holds discussions with the auditors in Lhe absence of management on a regular basis and the provision of
non-audit services by the external auditor is revicwed by the committee to ensure the integrity of the auditors independence is

not prejudiced.

Risk Comnittee

The members of the Risk Committee at the end of the financial year are:
I D Blackburne (Chairman)

W J Bartlett

R F Commie

Dr C Hirst

J ) Kennedy

M D E Kriewaldt

J D Story

Dr Z E Switkowski

The role of the Risk Committee is to provide an oversight across the Company for ali categories of risk through the
identification, assessment and management of risk and monitoring adherence to internal risk managemen policies and

procedures.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The members of the Nomination & Remunecation Committee at the end of the financial year are:

J D Story (Chairman)
I D Blackburne
Dr C Hirst

The primary role of this commiittee is to make recommendations 10 the Board on appointment i removal of dircctors, Board
performance. the remuncration of directors and the remuneration and performance targets of the Managing Director,
remuneration and performance targets of direct reports (0 the Managing Director, appointments to and terminations of Senior
Executive posiiions icporting 1o the Managing Direclor, remuneration and human resource policy matters and o review Board

and management succession planning.
DIRY.CTORS" INTEREST  ANT BENEFITS
Directors™ benefits are set out in note 38.

LEAD AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT
2001

The lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 5 and forms part of the direcior’s report for the year ended 30
June 2006.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The consolidated entity i1s of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100, issued by the Australian Securities & Investments
Commission, relating to the ‘rounding off” of amounts in the directors’ report. Amounts in the directors’ report have been
rounded off in accordance with (hat Class Order to the nearest one hundred thousand dollars unless otherwise stated.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors.

#John ?}‘lory
Chairman

-
< bkt

'y

/" /" John Fl\‘lul? y
# i ¢

., Managine Director

o /

L

Brisbane
1 September 2006

N - ' Page 4



Lead auditor’s independence declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 to the directors of Suncorp
Life & Superannuation Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation 1o the audit for the financial year ended 30 June 2006 there
have been:

*  no confraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the
audit; and

. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

EPME,
KPMG

S W
Brian Greig
Partner

Brisbane
} September 2006




SUNCORP L!'i'E & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED

BALANCE SIIEETS

As at 30 June 2006

Assets
Cash and liguid assets
Outstanding premivms
Other financial assets
Equity security investments
Debt security investments
Property investments
Other investments
Loans, advances and other receivables
Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance
Intangibles
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilitjes

Payables and other liabitities
Premiums in advance

Deposits and short term borrowings
Deferred 1ax liabilities

Gross policy liabilines

Gross insurance contract liabilities
Gross invesinent contract liabilties
Unvested policy owner benefits
Outside beneficial interests

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Parent entity interest

Share capital

Shareholder's re¢tained profits
Total parent entity interest
Oulside equity interesis
Total equity

Note

26

14
14
14
14
15

20(E)

17

20(A)
20(B)
20(C)
20(F)
21

22
23

Corapany Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm Sm
36.8 273 45.2 32.1
6.2 5.0 6.2 5.0
2.549.7 1.865.3 3,3128 22906
1,348.9 1,549.6 20765  2.028.0
382.7 290.6 527.0 290.6
0.1 (0.8) 0.2 (2.0)
207.2 200.5 79.3 883
60.6 433 60.6 435
30.8 7.3 39.8 7.3
0.8 0.4 15.5 220
4,632.8 3,988.5 6,165.1 4.805.2
74.5 48.6 168.3 129.3
2.8 2.7 2.8 2.7
39.0 54.9 38.8 34.2
95.8 525 95.8 52.5
- 3.244.1 - 3.244.}
2,347.6 - 2.347.6 -
1.558.8 - 1,558.8 -
270.2 3235 270.2 323.5
- - 1,429.8 -
4388.7  3.726.3 5912.) 3.806.3
244.1 262.2 251.0 998.9
39.0 39.0 39.0 39.0
205, 2232 212.0 228.7
244, 262.2 251.0 2677
- - - 731.2
244 1 262.2 251.0 9938.9

The above balunce sheels should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
INCOME STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2008
Note $m Sm Sm Sm
Revenuve
Premium revenue 6 136.0 113.4 136.0 113.4
Outwards reinsurance premium expense 27.8) (29.6) (27.8) {29.6)
108.2 83.8 108.2 83.8
Investment revenue 7 603.6 516.4 805.1 586.0
Orher operating revenue 8 27.5 23.4 30.2 45.7
739.3 623.6 943.5 715.5
Expenses
Claims expense 9 (77.9) (73.2) (779) (73.2)
Reinsurance recoveries revenue 8 20.0 21.9 20.0 21.9
(57.9) (51.3) (57.9) (51.3)
Operating expenses 10 (105.3) 97.1) (109.0) (104.9)
Increase in net policy habilities 20(D) (E) - (378.4) - (378.4)
Increase in net insurance contract liabilities 20(B) (E) (288.9) - (288.9) -
[ncrease tn investment contract habilities 20(C) (207.9) - (207.9 -
Decrease (increase) in unvested policy owner benefits 20(F) 55.2 243 55.2 243
Interest expense - - (197.2) -
(604.8)  (502.5) (805.7)  (510.3)
Profit before tax 134.5 121.1 137.8 205.2
Income tax expense (2 (75.2) (64.1) (77.1) (64.9)
Profit for the year 59.3 57.0 60.7 140.3
Profit atiributable to outside equity interests 13 - - - (81.7)
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 59.5 57.0 60.7 58.6

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITD

STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
For the year ended 30 June 2606

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Note $m S$m $m $m
Profit for the year 593 62.1 60.7 142.0
Total recognised income and expenses for the year 393 62.1 60.7 142.0
Effect of change in accounting policy
Effect of adoption of AASB 132, AASB 139, AASD 4, AASB
1038 on 1 July 2005 with 2004 not restated
Net decrease in retained earnings - (5.1) - (1.7)
59.3 57.0 60.7 140.3
Total recognised income and expense for the penod attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 593 57.0 60.7 58.6
Outside equity interests - - - 817
59.3 57.0 60.7 140.3

The above stutemenis of 1ccognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Premiums received
Fee income received

Olher operating income received
Rensurance premiums patd

Claims payments under policies
Reinsurance and olher recoveries received
Operating expenses paid

Interest received
Dividends received

Property income received
Other investment income received

Tax pad

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

CASI FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for purchase of investments

Procecds from disposal of invustments

Net decrease in loans advances and other receivables
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in deposits and other borrowings
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

Redemption of preference shares

Dividends paid

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at beginning of the financial ycar
CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Company
2006 2005
Note Sm Sm
704.6 529.1
27.4 233
(0.3) 0.1

(26.3) (29.3)
(544.2) (443.8)

Consolidated

2006 2005
Sm Sm
704.6 529.1

26.6 20.9
1.9 703

(26.3) (29.3)
(544.2)  (443.8)

34 0.8 3.4 0.8
(84.9) (769  (268.5)  (266.2)

70.1 94.5 124.9 82.4

266.0 220.6 126.5 78.8

1.8 (82.6) 30.8 55.9
(0.1 (1.6) (0.7) (0.4)
(35.6)  (48.1) (37.5)  (43.9)

26 381.9 186.) 1413 496

(1,391.0)  (1.114.9)
1,280.0 927.5

(8,406.9) (7,150.2)
7,528.5 6,792.0

(311.0) (187.4)

(878.4) (358.2)

(13.3) 474 687.4 436.2

29.0 - 28.9
- (29.0) - (29.0)
(43.0) (32.0) (43.0) (32.0)

(56.3) 15.4 644.4 4041

146 141 (92.5) 95.5

96.2 82.1 2375 142.0

26 110.8 96.2 1450 2375

The above statements of cash flows should be read in comunction scith the accompanying notes




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2006
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION 1.'MITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limiled (“the Company™) is a company domicilvd in Australia. The consolidated financial
report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2006 comprises Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “the consolidated entity™) and the consolidated entity’s interest in associated and
jointly controlled entities.

(a) Statement of compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with Australian

Accounting Standards (“AASBs”), adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (“AASB”) and the
Corporations Act 2001 .

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) form the basis of Ausiralian Accounting Standards adopted by
the AASB, and for the purpose of this report are called Australian equivalents to IFRS (“AIFRS™) to distinguish from
previous Australian GAAP. The financial reports of the consolidated entity and the Company also comply with [TRSs
and interpretations adopted by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board.

This is the consolidated entity’s first financial report prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,
being AIFRS, and [FRS and AASB ) First-thme Adoprion of Ausiralian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards has been applicd.

An explanation of how the transition to AIFRS has affectcd the reporied financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the consolidated entity and the Company is provided in note 40. This note includes reconciliations of
equity and profit or loss for comparative periods reported under previous Australian standards (“previous GAAP™) to
those reported for those periods under AIFRS.

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial report is presented in Australian dollars.

The consolidated entity has elected to early adopt the following revised accounting standards and amendments;

o AASB 2004-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (December 2004) amending AASB | First-time
Adoption of Australian equivalents to International Financiul Reporiing Standards (Juty 2004), AASB 101
Presemation of Financial Statements and AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures:

a  AASB 200S-1 Anendments 1o Accouniing Slandurds (May 2005) amending AASB 139 Financiol Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

s AASB 2005-4 Amendments to Australioun Accounting Standards (June 2003) amending AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recogmition and Measurement AASB 132 Financral Instrumems: Disclosure and Presentarion,
AASB ) First-time Adoption of Australiun Equivalents to Imernational Financial Reporting Standards (July
2004), AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts and AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts

The following standards and amendments were available for early adoption but have not been applied by the

consolidated entity in these financial statements:

e AASB 7 tinancial Instruments. Disclosure (Avsust 2005) replacing the presentation requirements of financial
instroments in AASB 132. AASB 7 is applicable for annual reporting pertods beginning on or after 1 July 2007

s AASB 20035-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (September 2003) requires that liabilities
arising from the issue of financial guarantee contracis are recognised in the balance shects. AASB 2005-9 is
applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier | January 2006

s AASB 200S-10 Amendments to Australian lccounting Standards (September 2005) makes consequentiol
amendmenls 1o AASB 132 Financial Instruments Disclosures and Prosentatinn, AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Stutements, AASB 114 Scyment Reporting, AASB 117 Leases, AASB 133 Earnings per Share.
AASB 139 Financiul Instruments Recognition and Measurement, AASB | Firsi-time Adoption of Australion
Equvalents 1o International Financial Reporting Standards. AASB 1 Insurance Contracts. AASB 1023
General Insurance Contracts and AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts, arising from the refease of AASB 7.
AASB 2005-10 is applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2007.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Jﬁ’_“{f’ﬁ’ﬂf’f_ﬂ{"’/ 30 June 2006

(. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(b) Basis of preparation (continued)
The consolidated entity plans to adopt AASB 2003-9 in the 2007 financial year and AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 in

the 2008 financial year.

The initial application of AASB 7 and AASB 2005-10 is not expected to have an impact on the financial results of
the Company and the consolidated entity as the standard and the amendment are concemed only with disclosures.

The initial application of AASB 2005-9 could have an impact on the financial results of the Company and the
consolidated entity as the amendment could result in liabilities being recognised for financial guarantee contracts that
have been provided by the Company and the consolidated entity. However, the quamification of the impact is not
Known or reasonably estimable in the current financia) year as an exercise to quantify the financial impact has not
been undertaken by the Company and the consolidated entity to date.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value: derivative financial instruments, (inancial insiruments held for trading, financial instruments held to
back life insurance policy liabilities and life investment contract liabilities,

The Company is of a kind referred 1o in ASIC Class Ocder 98/100 dated {0 July 1998 (updated by CO 05/641
effective 28 July 2005) and in accordance with the Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Directors’ Report
have been rounded off to the nearest hundred thousand dollars unless otherwise stated

The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management 10
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of asscts am!
liabilities, income and expenses.,

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  Actual results may
difter from these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by each entity in (he
consolidated entity.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
cevision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of Australian Accounting Standards that have significant effect
on the financial report and estimates with a significant risk of malerial adjustment in the next year are discussed in

-

note 3.

Except for the changes detailed in note 2, the accountiny policies sel out below have been applied consistenily to all
perwods presented in the consolidated financial report and in preparing openmg AIFRS balance sheets at 1 July 2004
for the purposes of the transition to Australian Accounting Standards -- AIFRS. The accounting policies applied to
the comparative period presented have been disclosed if they differ from the current period policy.

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by all entities in the consolidated entity.

Asscels and liabilities have been presented on the face of the balance sheets in decreasing order of Jiquidity and do not
distinguish between current and non-current items. The majority of the assets of the Company are investment assets
held to back insurance contract and investinent contract liabilities. Although the amount of those ussets whica may be
realised and thosc liabilities which may be scutled within 12 months of the reporting date is not always known,
estimates have been provided in the respecuive noles. Details of other amounts expected 1o be recovered or settled (a)
no more than 12 months after the reporting date, and (b) more than 12 months after the reporting date. have been

provided.

(¢) Principles underlying conduct of the life insurance business
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited is registered under the Life Insurance Act 1995 (“Tifc Act™).

The life insurance operations of the Company are conducted within two separate statutory funds, as required by the
Life Act. and are reported in aggregate with the sharcholder’s fund in the Company’s income statements, balance
sheets and statements of cash flows. The life insurance operations consist of insurance contract and investment

contract business.
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SUNCORP LIVE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1.

(©

(d)

(e)

SUMMARY OF S:GNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC!IES (Continued)

Principles undertying conduct of the life insurance business (continued)

Insurance coniract business relates to the transfer of significant insurance risks from the policyholder to compensate
the policyholder if a specificd uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. The compensation, referred
10 as insured benefits, are payable on death, or on the occurrence of a contingency dependent on the termination or
continuance of human life, or on the occurrence of injury or disability caused by accident or illness, and the financial
risk of the occurrence of the event which crystallises the payment of the insured benefit is borne by the Company. 1'he
insured benefit is not directly linked to the market value of the investments held. Participating business is treated as
insurance contract business under AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts.

Participating policy owner benefits in refation to insurance contract business, both vested and unvested, are treated as
expenses when incurred and labilities until paid. Eighty percent of the participating business profits, before
allocation of bonuses, is allocated to policy owners and expensed in the income statemenis.  The remaining twenty
percent is allocated to the shareholder. All profits and losses from non-participating business are ailocated to the

shareholder.

[nvestment contract business relates to wealth management products in which the Company issues a coniract where,
except for fixed income policies, the resulting liability 10 policyholders is lirked (0 the performance and value of the
assels that back those habilities. Whilsi the underlying assels are registered in the name of the Company and the
policyowner has no direct access to the specific assets, the contractual amrangements are such that the policyholder
bears the risks and rewards of the fund’s investment performance. For fixed income policies the resulling liabilily Lo
policyholders is linked to the fair value of the policy cishflows. Such contracts, which do not meet the definition of
an insurance contract, are referred to as life investment contracts when issued by a registered life insurance entiry and
administered through Life statutory funds in accordance with the requirements of the Life Act. The Company derives
fec income from the administration of the underlying assets,

Asscts and liabilities held in (he life insurance funds are subject 1o the distribution and transfers restrictions and other

requirements of the Life Act.

Basis of consolidation

(i) Controfled entities

Consolidation is the aggregation of the financial stalements of the parent entity and its controlled entities and the
climination of intra group transactions and balances. Controlled entilies are entitics (companies and managed

invesiment schemes or trusts) controlled by the Company.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities and protit and loss of all controlled
entities. The Company and its controlled entities together arc referred o in \his financial report as the consolidated
entity. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, 1o govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Trust units are classified as a financial liability in accordance with AASB 132 Financial Instrumenis: Disclosure and
Presentation. Accordingly. minority interests in controlled unit trusts held by parties other than Suncorp Life &
Superannuation Limited are presented as ouiside beneficial wierests, These minority interests were recognised as a
component of equity in prior periods.

Relited items ot income and expense are recognised in the income statements al their gross amounts, with the
offseting amount atiributable o outside interests recognised as an interest expense.

(i1) Trunsactions ¢luninal. d on corisohdation
The effects of alf transactions between entities in the consohdaled entity are eliminated from the balance sheets and

income statements in full.

Forceign currency

Iransactions denominated in foreign currencies are initially transtated to Australian dollars at the spot exchange vates
ruling at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at balance date are translated to
Australian dollacs at the spot rates of exchange current on that date. The resulting differences on translation of
monetary items are recognised in the income statements as exchange gains and losses in the financial year in which

the exchange rates change.




SUNCORP LJFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUKTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Derivative financial instruments
The consolidated entity uses derivative financial instruments in the foreign exchange, inlerest rate and equity markets

to hedge the consolidaled entity’s assets and liabilities or as part of the consolidated entity’s trading and investment
activities.

As disclosed in note 2, the consolidated entity adopted certain AIFRS standards from | July 2005 and did not restate
comparative information. This has resulted in an AIFRS policy being applicable for the current period and a previous
GAAP policy being applicable for the comparative period. Both policies are sel out below. The quantitative effect of
the change in accounting policy is sct out in note 40.

Current period policy
The consolidated entity utilises derivative financial instruments to hedge underlying exposures in investments backing

insurance contract habilities and investment contract habilities. Derivative financial instruments are not held for
speculative purposes. Interest rate derivatives are used to hedge interest rate risks inherent in the business. Equity
options and futurces are purchased 10 hedge exposures arising from equity investments.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair valoe. being the l1s1 price at trade date, excluding
transaction costs and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value as at the reporting date, being the last trading
price on that date. The resulting fair value gain or loss is recorded in the income statements.

Comparative period policy

Derivative (inancial instruments used by the consolidated entity are swaps, forwards, futuces and options in the
foreign exchange. intcrest rate and equily markets. Derivative financial instruments that are used to hedge underlying
exposures are accounted for in a manner consistent with the accounting treatment of the uaderlying exposures.
Accordingly. derivalive financial instruments are marked to market and the resulting gams and losses are reported in

the income statements.

Foreign exchange derivatives are entered into in order to hedge exchangu rate risks arising from offshore liabilities.
[nterest rate derivatives are used (o hedge interest rate risks inherent in the business. Equity options and futures are
purchased to hedge exposures arising from equity investments.

(g8) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash includes deposits at call and other highly liquid investments with short periods (o maturity which are readily
convertible to cash on hand and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. net of outstanding bank
overdrafis and are included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the staterments of cash tlows

(h) Financial assets
As disclosed at note 2, the Company adopted certain AIFRS standurds from 1 July 2005 and did not restate

comparative information. This has resulicd in an AIFRS policy being applicable for the current period and a previous
GAAP policy being applicable for the comparalive period. Both policies are set out below. The quantitalive effect of
the change in accounting policy is set out in note 10.

Current period policy

(i) Assets backing policy liabilitic,

The Company hus determined that o/l assets within its statutory funds are asscts backing policy liabiliies. These
assels are designated as far value through profit and loss, and are measured on a basis that is consistent wih the
measurement of the liabilities. 10 the extent permitted under accounting standards.

Financial assets are recognised at fair value. Given the short term nature of most recerwvables. the recoverable amount
approximaices fair value

» lInvestment securities comprise holdings in unlisted managed investment schemes. futures and forward forcign
exchange contracts. Movements in the fair values between each balance date, being the last price on those dates,
are recognised in the income statements.

*  Premium debtors relate to policies of life insurance and are measured at present value with movements
recognised in the income statements.

s Deferred acquisition costs on life investment contracts comprise the incremental variable distribution costs
incurred when acquiring new business (refer note (i) for recognition and measurement policy).




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h) Financial assets (continued)

M

Current period policy (continued)

»  Reinsurance and othor recoveries on l:fe inswance contracls are measured at present value with movemonts
recognised in the income statements.

e Other receivables include outstanding settiements on invesiment sales, distributions receivable and loans.

(ii) Assels not backing life insurance contract liabilities or life invesiment contract liabilities

Financial assets held within the shareholder fund and subsidiaries do not back life insurance contract Liabilities or life
mvestment contract habilities. To ensure consistency across (he Company, and except where specifically stated
otherwise, all financial assets and all non-financial assets are recognised at fair value 1o the extent permitted under
accounting standards, Adjustments to the value of such assets are recognised in the income statements when the
corresponding accounting standards allow such treatment. The following assets are not held at fatr value.

e Investments by Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited in subsidiary companics are recorded at cost less any
accumulated impairment losscs. On consolidation, the investment n subsidiaries is eliminated.
e Loans and other receivables are measured at amortised cost tess accumulated impainnent losses.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire, or are
transferred. A transfer occurs when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are

passed to an unrelated third party

Comparative period policy
All assets are measured at net market values as at \he reporting date and changes in their net markel values are
recognised in the income stalerents as revenues or expenses in the financiat year in which the changes occur.

Net market values for listed investiments and government securities are determined by reference to markel quotations.
Unlisled investments are determined by reference to independent valuations based on the latest available tntormation
on the ivestments. These principlcs also apply to invesiments through unitised vehicles.

Shares in controlled entities have been valued by directors at their net market value. Net market value has been
determined bascd on embedded value.

Loans and other receivables are carried at nct market value and settled regularly. Not market value is the prosent
value of amounts due, subject to specific provision for any doubtful amounts.  Reccivables include cutstanding
seltlernents on investment sales and prepayment of policy premium.

Deferred acquisition costs
Acquisition cosls that are available for deferral on life investment contracts are the incremental vanable distribation

costs incurred when acquiring new business.

For life insurance business, the costs of acquiring new business include commissions, certain advertising, policy 1ssue
and underwriting costs, agency expenses and other sales costs Al such costs are implicitly deferred through Margin
on Services (*"MoS”) accounting. The amount delerred is subject to an overall limit such that the value of future
profits at inception cannot be negative.

For stawtory fund life investment business and wwvestment business written throuch the shareholder fund, al
inciemertul acquisition costs are deferred and recognised as an assel in the balance sheets. The amount of the
deferred acquisition costs are assessed at each reporting date and the asset is amortiscd as the revenue 10 which those
costs relate is recognised. All other acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

The acquisition costs deferred for investment contracts are determined s the lower of actual incremental costs
incurred and the allowance for e recovery of those costs from (he premiums or policy charges (as appropriate for

eirch policy class)

~ Pape |4
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNUF:CANT ACCOUNTIYG POLICIES (Continued)

)]

(K

Impairment
Assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Indicators include both intemal and external

factors. If any such impairment exists, the asser’s recoverable amount 1s estiniated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the asset’s carrying amount exceeds s recoverable amount. Impainment
losses are recognised in the income statements.

The recoverable amount of receivables carried at amortised cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate being the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these financial assets. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted. The recoverable amount of
other assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. in assessing value in use, the estimated
future cashflows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the titme value of money and the risks specific (o the asset.

An impairment Joss for an asset can be reversed in foliowing periods il there are indications that the impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or has decreased. The impairment loss can be reversed. in the income
statements, only to the extent that it increases the asset back to its original carrying amount before impairment was
recorded.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the deprectation (amortisation) charge for the assei is adjusted in future
periods 1o allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, tess its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its
remaining useful life.

Financial liabilities

As disclosed at note 2, the Company adopted certain AIFRS standards from | July 2005 and did not restate
compacative information, This has resulted in an AIFRS policy being applicable for the current period and a previous
GAAP policy being applicable for the comparative period. Both policies are set out below. The quantitative effect of
the change in accounting policy is set out in note 40.

Current period policy
Financial Liabilities are inttially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable 10 the issue

of the financial liability, except for financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss which exclude transaction
costs. Subsequent recogmition depends upon the classification of the financial Lability. Financial liabilities are
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(i) Financial tiabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A fimancial liability a1 fair value through profit or loss is a financial hiability that meets either of the followiny
coaditions:

e itisclussified as held for trading: or

e upon initial recognition it is designaled by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company has designaled the deposits and borrowings of the statutory funds as being at fair value through pretil
or loss and are determined using the transaction price where available. Movements in the fair value are recognised in
the income statement.

(i) Financial liabilities at amoriised cost
Financial habilities, other than financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss. are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The consolidated entity has classified the deposits and borrowings of the shareholder fund and consolidated entitics
a: being loans and receivables :nid measured at amortised cost

Comparative period policy

(1) Creditors

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the economic entity prior to the end of the
financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

{1t} Deposits and borrowings
Borrowings comprise loans, deposits and advances owing to the parent entity. controlled entities, controlled entities
of the parent entity and between funds. Transactions between the entities are on a nonmal commercial basis.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

[. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Financial liabilities (continued)
Current period policy (continued)
(iir) Other liabilities
Other hLabilities are measured at net present values and changes in their net present values are recognised in the
income slatements as revenues or expenses in the financial year in which the changes occur.

(1) Deferred revenue
The Company has determined that upfront fees are financial service revenues on investment contracts that are not
fully eamed when the sale is made. These fees are deferred ang recognised as a liability. The amount of the deferred
revenuc is assessed at each reporting date and the liability is amortised over the life of the contract and recognised as
an expense in the income statement. All other financial service fees are recognised as revenues as the service is

provided.

(m) Provisions
A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount which is recognised in the balance shects when:
» the Company has a present obligation (Jegal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
e itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits wil) be required to settle the obligation; and
e the amount can be rehably estimated.
If the effect is miaterial, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and. when appropriate. the risks specific to the

liability.

(n) Policy liabilities
As disclosed at note 2, the Company adopted certain AIFRS standards from | July 2005 and did not restaic
comparative information. This has resulted in an AIFRS policy being applicable for the current period and a previous
GAAP policy being applicable for the comparative period. Both policies are set out below. The quantitative cffect of
the change in accounting policy is s¢t oul in note 40.

Current period policy

The life insurance policy valuation determines the capilal and retained profits of the statutory funds and the
shareholder fund. The components for life insurancc contracts and life investment conlracls are reported on the
balance sheets as gross policy lability, current period bonuses, policy liabilities ceded to reinsurers and unvesied
policy owner benefits. Movements in these balances drive the profit emergence and are reported in the income
statement, including the proposed transfcr to the shareholder fund in respect of participating business.

(1) Insurance contracts
The financial reporting methodology used 1o determine the fair value of life insurance contract liabilities is referred to
as MoS.

Under MoS, the excess of premium received over claims and expenses (the margin) is recognisud over the life of the
contract in a manner Lha( reflects the pattem ol risk accepled from the policyholder (the service). The movement in
life insucance contract habilities recognised in the income statements reflects the release of this maryin.

Life insurance contract liabilities are usually determined using a projection 'nethod., whereby estimates of policy cash
flows (premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margius to be rcleased in future periods) are projected into the {uture.
The hability is calculated as the net present value of these projected cash flows using best estimate assumptions about
the future. When the benefits under the life insurance contract are linked Lo the assets backing it, the discount rate
applied is bascd on the expected future earnings rate of those assets. Where the benefits are not linked! o the
performance of the backing assets, a risk-free discount rate is used. The risk-free discount rate is determined by the
Appointed Actuary based on the Commonwealth government bond rate, having regard to the nature, structure and
term of the contract liabiliues.

An accumulation method may be used if it produces results that are not materially different from those produced by a
projection method. This method has been used for some Group risk business, where the liability is based on an
unearned premium reserve, less an explicit allowance for deferred acquisition costs, and a rescrve for incurred but not
reported claims.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Policy liabilitics (Continued)
Current period policy (continued)
Parlicipaling policies are entitled to share in the profits that arise tfrom participating business. 'his profit sharing is

governed by the Life Act and the life insurance company’s constilution. The participating policy owner profit sharing
entitlement is treated as an expense in the financial statements.

Allocation of operating profit and unvested policyholder benefits
The operating profit arising from discretionary patticipating contracts is allocated between shareholders and
participating policyholders by applying the MoS principles in accordance with the Life Act. Once profit is allocated
1o participating policyholders it can only be distributed Lo these policyholders.

Profit allocated to participating policyholders is recognised in the income statements as an increase n policy
liabilities. Both the element of this prof that has not yet been allocated 10 specific policyholders (ie unvested), and
that which has been allocated to specific policyholders by way of bonus distributions (ie vested), are included within

life insurance contact liabilities.

Bonus distributions to participating policyholders are merely a change in the nature of the liability from unvested to
vested and, as such, do not alter the amount of pro(it attributable to shareholders.

(i1) Investment Contracts

Lite investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and a management services elemeat The financial
instrument element represents the unit hability to the policyholder and is measured at fair value, with a minimum
equal to the amount payable on demand. Movements in fair value are recognised through the income statement. The
management services element refers to activities and cashflows arising from management services provided.
representing the deferral of fecs yet to be earned and expenses yet 1o be recognised and is measured at fair value,

refer notes 1(1) and 1()).

Comparative period policy
Policy habilities in the balance sheets and change in policy liabilities disclosed in the income statements, have been

calculated using MoS methodology in line with guidance provided by Actuarial Standard 1.03 “*Valuation Standard”
issued by the Life Insurance Actuarial Standards Board.

Policy liabilitics are measured at net present values of estimated future cash flows (the projection method) or, where
the result would not be materially different, as the accumulated benefits available to policy owners (the accumulation

method).

(o) Liability adequacy test
T'he adequacy of the insurance and investment coniract liabilities s evaluated each year. he imsurance contract test
considers current estimates of all contractual and related cash flows. The investment contract test imually considers
the recoverbility of associated deferred acquisition cost assets. If it is determined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortfall exists, il is immediately recognised in the income statements

(p) Unvested policy owner benefits
Unvested policy owner benefits are policy owner retained protits as defined in the Life Act. These arc amounts that

have been allocated to participaung policy owners generally. but have not been included in policy fiabilites as at the
reporting datc. These amounts are shown as a separate liability due to policy owners.

(@) Share capita)
(1) Dividends
Proviston is made for the amount of any dividend declared. determined. or publicly recommended by the dircctiss on

or beiure the end of the financial year, but not distributed at reporting date.

Where a dividend is declared post-reporting date but prior to the date of the financial siatements, disclosure of the
declaration is made in the tinancial statements.

uae |



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCYAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC. POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilitics are not recognised in lhe balance sheets but are disclosed in the financial report. unless the
possibility of settlement is remote, in which case no disclosure is made. 1f settlement becomes probable, a provision
is recognised.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the balance sheets but are disclosed in the financial report when inflows are
probable. [finflows become virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

The amount disclosed as a contingent liability or contingent asset s the best estimate of the seitlement or inflow.

(s) Commitments
Commitments are not recorded in the balance sheets but are disclosed in the financial report at their face value.

Disclosure is made in the following time bands from reporting date:

e within twelve months;

e twelve months or longer but not longer than five years: and

» longer than five years.

Commitments to extend credit, letters of credit, guarantees, warranties and indemnities are classed as financial
insteuments and attract fees in line with market prices for similar arrangements and reflect the probability of defaul.
They are not sold or traded. They are disclosed as contingent liabilities at their face value.

(1) Revenue
Current period policy
() Life Insurance Premium Revernue
Premiums reccived include premiums for life insurance contracts and life investment contracts. The premium
recorded as revenue in the income statements relates to life insurance contracts. The components of premium that
relate to life investment contracts are in the nature of deposits and qualify for recognition as liabilities. These
amounts are treated as a movement in policy habilities.

Premiums with no due date are recognised as revenue on a cash received basis. Premiums with a regular due date are
recognised as revenwe on an accruals basis. Unpaid premioms are only rccognised «» revenue during the days of
grace or where sccured by the surrender value of the policy and are included as outstanding premiums in the balance
sheets. Premiums due afier but received before the end of the financial ye:r are shown as premiums in advance in the

balance sheets.

(ii) Investment Revenue
Investment revenue and expenses
Al investment revenue and expenses arc brought to account on an accrual basis in the period earmed or incurred

which may differ from when cash is transferred.

Interest
Intercst income is recogniscd as it accrues, (aking into account the effective yicld on the financial asset.

Dividends

Dividends from subsidiaries and associated entities are brought to account when they are declared in (he financial
statements of the subsidiaries and associatcd entities. Dividend revenue s recognised net of any franking credils
Distributions from fisted and unlisted unit trusts are recognised on the date the umit value is quoted ex-distrituilion

i) Fees and other revenuc

Fees are charged to customers in connection with investment contracts and other financial services contracts. Revenue
is recognised as services are provided. In some casc~ services are provided at the inception of the contract while other
services are performed over the life of the contract.

Investment contracts consist of a financial instrument and a management services element. The payment by the
policyholder includes the amount to fund the financial instrument and a fee for the origination of the contract. In
many cascs, that origination fee is based on commission paid (o financial planners for providing initial advice
Origination fees from investment contracts are deferred and recognised over the average expected life of investment
contracts. Deferred origination fees are presented as an “Other Liability™ on the balance sheets. The financial
instrument is classified as an investment contract and is measured at fair value (see note (n)).
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SUNCORP LIFL & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
__Forthe year ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNJFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

(t

Revenue (continued)
Current period policy (continued)
The revenue that ¢can be autributed to the origination service is recognised at inception. Any commission paid related

to that fee is also recognised as an expense at thar time.

Fees of the shareholder fund including ongoing investment management services and other services provided are
charged on a regular basis, usually daily, and are recognised as income as the service is provided.

Comparative period policy

(i) Premium revenue

The Company adopts AASB 1038 Life /asurance Busmess which requires components of premiums thal are not
revenues (i.e. amounts akin o deposits and which qualify for recognition as liabilities) and components of claims that
are not expenses (i.e. amounts akin to withdrawals from deposits and which quatify for recognition as reductions in
liabilities) to be removed from reported changes in premiums and claims as shown in notes 6 and 9 (changes in policy
liabihties in note 20). Application of this accounting policy has no impact on the financial resulis.

Premiums with no due date are recognised as revenuc on a cash rcccived basis. Premiums with a regualar due date are
recognised as revenue on an accsuals basts. Unpaid premiums are only recognised as revenue during the days of
grace or where secured by the surrender value of the policy and are included as "Outstanding premiums” in the
balance sheets. Premiums due afier but received before the end of the financial year are shown as "Premiums in
advance" in the balance sheets.

(i) Investment revenue
All investment revenue is brought to account on an accruals basis.

Dividends are recognised as income on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Distributions from unlisted unit
trusts are recognised on the date the unit value is quoted ex-distribution.

Net realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in the income statements and are determined as the
difference between the net market value at year end or consideration received (if sold during the period), and the net
market value as at the prior year end or cost (if the investment was acquired during the period).

(iii) Fecs and other revenue
Fees and commissions are taken to income in the financial year in which they are earned.

(u) Acquisition costs

Current period policy
(1) Life insurance activities
The value and fulure recovery of life insurance contracls acquisition costs are determined according 10 MoS

techniques.

Acquisition costs are amortised over the period that they will be recovered and the deferral and amortisation is
recognised  the income statements as an increase/decrease in nel life insurance policy liabilitie-.

Acquisition losses in the income statements are recogmsed at inception.

(i) Life imvistment activitiey
Dcferred acquisition costs for lile investment contracts arc amortised in the (income slatements in accordance with the
expecled eaming pattern of the ussocialed revenue.

Comparative period policy

Acquisition costs. being the fixed and variable costs of acquiring new business, include commission, certain
adveriising, policy issue and underwriting costs, agency expenses and other sales costs. The actual acquisition costs
incurred are recorded in the income statements.

(1) Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy liabilities are determined by the Appointed Actuary after taking into account the value and future recovery of
acquisition costs. Those costs are amortised over the period that they will be recoverable. The deferral and
amortisation of acquisition costs are recognised in the income statements within “increase/decrease in net policy

liabilities™.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFiCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Acquisition costs (continued)

Comparative period policy (continued)

The acquisition cosls deferred are determined as the lower of actual costs incurred and the allowance for the recovery
of those costs from the premiums or policy charges (as appropriate for each policy class). The amount deferred s
subject to an overall limit such that the value of fulure profits at inception cannot be negative. Acguisition losses are
recognised al inception to the extent 1his situation arises.

(ii) Other Acquisition Costs
Where acquisition costs are recouped through on-going management fees charged to the investors on products that
are recorded in the Shareholder Fund. they are deferred and recognised in the balance sheets.

The deferred acquisition costs are measured at the lower of cost and recoverable amount and are amortised over the
expected life of the policy. The amortisation is recognised in the income statements within ‘operating expenses’.

(v) Claims expense

Current period policy

(1) Life insurance contracts

Life insurance contracl claims arc separated into their expense and withdrawal components. The component that
relates to the bearing of risks is lreated as an expense. Other claim amounts, which are in the nature of withdrawals,

are recognised as a decrease in life insurance contract liabilities.

Claims are recognised when the liability to the policyholder under the policy conmract has been established or upon
notification of the insured event, depending on the type of claim.

(ii) Life investment contracts
There is no claims expense in respect of invesument contracts. Amounts paid to policyholders in respect of investment

contracts are withdrawals and are recognised as a decrease in investment contract liabilities (see note {n)).

Comparative period policy

The Company adopts AASB 1038 Life Insurance Business which requires components of preniiums thal are not
revenues (i.e. amounts akin to deposits and which qualify for recognilion as liabilities) and components of claims that
are nol expenses (1.e. amounts akin to withdrawals from deposits and which qualify for recognition as reductions in
liabilities) 1o be removed from rcported changes in premiums and claims as shown in notes 6 and 9 (changes in policy
habilities in note 20). Application of this accounting policy has no impact on the financial results.

Claims under investment-linked business are recognised when the policy ceases to participate in the eamings of the
fund. Claims on non investment-linked business are recognised when the liability to the policy owner under the

policy contract has been established.

(w) Qutwards reinsurance premium expense

Where portions of the policy are reinsured the ceded premiums aic recogniscd in the income statements as
rcinsurance expense.

Premiums ceded to reinsurers arc recognised as ::xpenses in accordance with the pattern of vross premium received.
being for facultative, proportional and non-proportional reinsurance

(x) Basis ol expense apportionment

Expenses are incurred in relation to the acquisition and maintenance of !ife insurance and life investiment contracts., i1
addition o expenses incurred with respect to investment management and other administrative activities. Expenscs
have been apportioned in accordance with Division 2 of Part 6 of the Life Act as follows:

i Expenses excluding investment management fees, which are directly identifiable. have been apportioned
between policy acquisition and policy maintenance on the basis of the objective whua incurring eacts
expense, and the outcome achieved.

L Where allocation is not feasible between the disclosure categories, cxpenses have been allocated as
maintenance expenses.

i, Expenses which are directly attributable to an individual policy or product are allocated directly to the
statutory fund within which the class of business to which that policy or product belongs.

v, All indirect expenses charged to the income statements are equitably apportioned to cach class of business.

"
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Forthe year ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Basis of expense apportionment (continued)
The expense apportionment basis is in line with the principles sct out in the Life Insurance Actuarial Standards Board

Valuation Slandard (Actuarial Standard AS1.04: Vuluation Standard).

(y) Income tax
Current period policy
Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction, is recognised as an expense in the
period in which profits arise. For life insurance business, income tax expense is determined after segregating the
operations into classes of business which are taxed at different rates and on different bases according to lhe rules

relating to each class.

Deferred income tax is provided m full, using the liability method, providing for temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. The
value reported in the balance sheets represents the net position of the Company and consolidated enlity. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is seutled.

Deferred tax asseis are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effect of income tax losses available for carry forward are recognised
as an assel when it is probable that future 1axable profits will be available against which these losses can be utilised.

Accounting Standard AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts requires shareholder and policy owner tax to be included
in income fax expense in the income statements. The majority of life insurance tax is allocated to policy habilities

and does not affect net profn attributable to membecs of the Company.

Tax consolidations
The Company and its wholly owned controlled entlities are wholly owned contolled entities in a tax-consolidated
group, with Suncorp-Metway Ltd as the head entity. The implementation date for the tax consolidated group was |

July 2002.

The consolidated entity recognises the current and deferred tax assets and deterred tax liabilities applicabic 1o the
transactions undertaken by i, as if it continued to be a separately taxable entity in its own right, reasonably adjusted
for certain intriaygroup transactions. The head entity recognises the entire tax-consolidated group’s current tax liability.
Any dilferences between the current tax liability and any tax funding arrangement amounts (see below) ace
rccognised by the Company as an equity contribution to the head entity.

The tax-consolidated group has entered into a tax sharing agreement that requires wholly-owned subsidiaries to make
contributions to the head entity for tax liabilities arising [rom ex(ernal transactions occurting after the implementation
of tax consolidation. The contributions are calculated as if the individual tax hability of the subsidiary was payable
{as if the subsidiary was a separalcly laxable entity in is own right), reasonably adjusted for certain intragroup
transactions. The assets and liabjlities arising under the tax sharinu agreement are recognised as intercompany assets

and liabilities, a1 call.

I'he head entity, together with the other members of the consolidated group, have also, via the tax sharing agreement.
provided for the determination of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity defaull on s tax
payment obligations. No amounts have been recogniscd in the financial statements in respect of this component of the
agreement as this outcomne 1s considered remote.

Comparative period policy
The consolidated entity adopts the liability method ot tax effect accounting. For iife insurance business, income fax
expense is determined after segregating the operations into classes of business which are taxed at different rates and

on ditferenm bases according to the rules relating to each class.

Tax effect accounting procedures are followed whereby the income tax expense in the income statements is matched
with the accounting profit after allowing for permanent differences. The future tax benefit relating to tax losses is not
carried forward as an asset unless the benefit is virtually certain of realisation. Income tax on cumulative timing
differences is set aside to the deferred income tax or the future income tax benefit accounts at the rates which are
expected to apply when those timing ditferences reverse.,

o
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cantinued)
For the yeur ended 30 June 2006

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIC.\NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Income tax (continued)
Comparative period policy (continued)
Tax Conyolidations
The Company and its wholly owned controlled entities are wholly owned controlled entities in a tax-consolidated
group, with Suncorp-Metway Litd as the head entity. The implementation date for the tax-consolidated group was |

July 2002.

The head entity recognises all of the current and deferred tax balances and liabilities of the tax-consolidated group
(after elimination of intragroup transaclions).

The Company and ils wholly owned controlled entities have entered into tax sharing agreements that require them to
make contributions to the head entity for tax liabilities arising from external transactions occurring after the
implementation of tax consolidations. The Company s statutory funds’ contribution will be calculated 2s a recharge of
their “‘notional™ tax expense for the period and are payable in accordance with the tax sharing agreement. The
Company's sharcholders funds® contributions are calculated based on the stand alone current ycar tax hability of the

Company and are payablce guarterly.

The assets and liabilities arising under the tax sharing agreements are recognised as intercompany assets and
liabilities with a consequential adjustment to income tax expenses/revenue.

(z) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (“GST”). except

where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (“ATO”). In lhese
circurnstances the GST is recognised in the cost of acquisition of the asset or in the amount of the expense.

Receivables, payables and provision for outstanding claims are stited with the amount of GST included. The net
amount ot GST recoverable from, or payable to. the ATO is included as an asset or liability in the balance shects.

Cash flows are included in the statements of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising
from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating

cash flows.

(aa) Changes in accounting estimates and errors
(1) Changes in accounting estimales
Ifa change in an accounting estimate gives nse to a change in an asset or habtlity, or relates to equity. it is recognised
by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or equity item in the period of the change Otherwise, it
is recognised prospectively by including it in the income statcments in the period of the change and future periods, as
applicablc.
(i) Errors
Material prior period errors arc corrected rctrospectively ((o the carliest date praclicable) in the next issued financial
report by:
s restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or
= if the error occurred before the carliest prior period presented, restaling the opening balances of assets, liability and

equily for the earliest prior period presented.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
In the current financial year, the consolidaled cntity adopted the following standards as a result of transition to AIFRS:

o AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presemation

e AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recovnition and Meuasurement
* AAS 4 lnyuronce Contructs

® AASE 1038 Life lnsurance Contracts

These changes in accounting policy have been adopted in accordance with the transition rules for AIFRS contained in
AASB 1, which does not require the restatement of comparative information for financial instruments within the scope
of AASB 132 and AASB 139 and for insurance contracts with the scope of AASB 4 and AASB 1038,

A description of the changes in accounting policies from adopting these standards and the adjustments to the opening
balance sheeis at 1 July 2005 are set out in Part B of note 40.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Forthe year ended 30 June 2006

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Management have discussed with the Avdit Commitlee, the development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s
critical accounting policies and estimales and the application of these policies and estimates. The éstimates and
Judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities with the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Insurance contraci liabilities
Policy liabilities for life insurance contracts are computed using statistical or mathematical methods, which are

expected to give approximately the same results as if an individual liability was calculated for each contract. The
computations are made by suitably qualified personnet on the basis of recognised actuarial methods, with due regard
to relevant actuarial principles and standards. The methodology takes into account the risks and uncenainties of the
particular classes of life insurance business written. Deferred policy acquisition costs are connected with the
measurement basis of life insurance liabilities and are equally sensitive 1o the factors that are considered in the

liability measurement.

The key factors (hat affect the estimation of these liabilities angd related assets are:

o monality and morbidity experience on life insurance products, including enhancements to policyholder benefits;

s the cost of providing the benefits and administering these insurance contracts; and

» discontinuance experience, which aftecis the Company’s ability to recover the cost of acquiring new business
over the lives of the contracts.

In addition. factors such as regulation, competition, interest rales, laxes, security market conditions and general
economic condilions affect the level of these liabilities. In some contracts, the Company shares experience on
mortality. morbidity, persistency and investment results with its customers, which can offsct the impact of these
factors on profitability from those products. Details of specific actuarial policies and methods are set out in note 4.

Balances of insurance contract liabilities are set out in note 20.

(i) Assets arising from reinsurance contructs

Assets arising from reinsurance contracts are also computed using the same methods as for insurance contract
liabitities. [n addition, the recoverability of thesc assets is assessed on a periodic basis 1o ensure that the balance is
reflective of the amounts that will uliimately be reccived, taking into consideration factors such as counterparty and
credit risk. Impairment is recogmsed where there is objcctive evidence that the Company may not receive amounts
due 10 it and these amounts can be reliably mcasured.

Balances of assets ansing from reinsurance contracts are set out innote |5.

(iii) Investment contracts — Deferved Acquisition Cosis and Dejferred Revenue

The assessment of recoverability and amortisation of deferred acquisition costs s an inherently uncertain process.
There is no reliable measure of the future economic benefits that will arise from the acquisition costs incurred. Thix is
largely duc to the uncertainty surrounding continuance or surrender of cenain policies. The acquisition costs are
capitalised and separately disclosed in the balance shects and amortised over the period to which the costs provide

ncome

The amortisation of deferrcd revenue is an inhcrently uncertain process. involving assumptions about faclors related
to the period « policy will be in force. This is largely due to uncertainty surrounding continuance or surrender of
particular policies. The deferred revenue is capitalised and separately disclosed as an other liability in the baiance
sheets and amortised over the pueriod 1o which the policy is expected to provide income.

Balances of deferred acquisition costs are set out in note 16 and deferred revenue in note 18,
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2066

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNiFICANT ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Policy Liabilities
Paolicy liabilities arc amounts which, when taken together with future preminms and investment earmings, are required
10 meet the payment of future benefits and expenses and for life insurance contracts, incorporate profit margins on

existing business 1o be released wher earmed in future periods.

The cffective date of the actuarial report on policy liabilities and solvency reserves is 30 June 2006. The actuarial
report was prepared by Mr Rowan Ward, Appointed Actuary B Sc. FTAA, and indicates that the Appointed Actuary is
satisfied as to the accuracy of the data upon which policy habilitics have been determined.

The amount of policy liabilities has been determined in accordance with methods and assumptions disclosed in this
financial reporl and with the standards of the Life Insurance Actuarial Standards Board (LIASB).

Policy liabitities have been calcultated in accordance with Acwuarial Standard 1.04 “Valuation Standard™ (AS 1.04)
issued by the LIASB ander Section |14 of the Life Act. For Life Insurance contracts, the Actuarial Standard requires
the policy liabilities to be caleulated in a way which allows for the systematic release of planned margins as scrvices
are provided to policy owners and premiums are received. For Life Investment contracts, the Actuarial Standard
requires the policy liabilities to be calculated in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

The mmethods and protil carriers tor the major policy types of Life [nsurance contracts are as follows:

Business I'ype Method Profit Carricr
Individual
Conventional Projection Bonuses
Investment account Projection [nterest credits
Allocated pension Projection Interest credits
L.ump sum risk Projection Expected claim payments
Income stream risk Projection Expected claim payments
Annuity Projection Annuity payments
Group
Investment accoum Projection Interest credits
LLump sum risk Accumulation -
Income stream tisk Accumulatton -

Under the projection method, estimates of policy cash Hows {premiums, benefits, expenses and profit margins to be
released in future periods) are projecied into the future. The projected profit margins are expressed as a percentage of
the relevant profit carrier. The pobcy hability is calculated as the nel present value of these projected cash flows.

Under the accumuiation method for risk business the policy liability is basically equal to the sum of resenes for
incurred hut not reported claims, open disabilily income claims and uncamed premium.

I'he iollowing table sets oul key ussumptions used in the calculation of policy habilities:
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the yeur ended 30 June 2006

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Policy Liabilities (Continued)

Assumntion
Investment camings

Maintenance expenses

Inflation

Voluntary discontinuance

Surrender values

Ratcs of taxalion

Mort:lity - ri-X products

Basis of Assumption

For participating business, assumed eaming rates are
determined having regard to the asset mix of the
investment portfolio backing the product, the assumed
earning raes for each sector, market conditions at the
valuation date and tax on investment eamings approprate
10 the class of business and asset sector. Pre-tax rates
varied from 4.80% (2005: 4.10%) for the cash sub-funds to
8.60% (2005: 7.90%) for the balanced sub-funds and 9.8%
(2005: 9.10%) for the equity sub-funds.

All non-participating business uses an investment earnings
and discount rate assumption of the risk free rate. This has
been detenmined from the government bond curve and
varied (before tax) between 5.8% and 3.9% (2005 5.1%
and 5.4%).

Per policy expense rates are based upon expected costs to
service existing contracts in the period following the
reporting date. Expense rates vary by product line and
class of business. Tax deductibility ot expenses is allowed
for, at rates appropriate to the taxation basis of ihe
business.

The ianflation assumplion is reviewed at each valuation.
For this valuation 3.0%pa (2005: 2.5%pa) was assumed,
taking into account the difference between long-term
government bonds and indexed governmenmt bonds for
Australia.

Rates are based upon recent internal invustigations and
industry experience. Rates vary by product, class of
business, policy valuc and duration in force. Allowance is
also made for cash withdrawals.

Future long-tcrm rates of discontinuance assumed vary
betwecn 2% and 30% (2005: between 2% and 30%).

Surrender values are determined by applying the surrender
bases curranl at the reporting date.

The ralcs of taxation assumed are based on current income
tax legistation applicable (o the type of product.

Mortality ratcs for risk products have becn delermined
using the standard mortality table (1A93-97) with
adjustments for smoking status and also to allow for
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited experience.
Adjustinents range from 76% (2005 76%) to 160% (200
160%). Table 1\93-97 was developed by the Institute of
Actuaries of Australia based on Australian insured lives
experience from 1995 to 1997

Significant Changes
The use of a risk free
rate, for risk products,
was made as part of
the introduction of
AIFRS, as at 1 July
2005.

None

No changes 1n approach.

Assumed long term
discontinuance rales tor risk
business reduced 10 reflect
improvements in ¢cxperience.

None

None

Nonc




SUNCORP LJFi. & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCJIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIO S (Continued)

Policy Liabilities (Continued)

Assumption
Mortality —
Annuitants

Disability - lump sum

Disability — income

Future supporable bopuses

and interest  credits
participating policies

to

Basis of Assumption

Mortality rales for annuitants have been determined using
the standard table IM/IF80 with ad)justments for expected
mortality improvement. Tables IM/IF80 were developed
by the Institute of Actuaries and Facuity of Actuaries based
on UK annuitant lives experience from 1979 to 1982.

Disability rates on lump sum Total and Permanent
Disabtement policies have been based on industry
experience with adjustments to rellect Suncorp Life &
Superannuation Limited’s experience.

For trauma policies, assumed incidence rates are based on
Auvstralian population statistics with adjustments to reflect
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited’s experience.

Disability rates on income policies have been determined
using the IAD89-93 table with adjustments to reflect
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limied’s experience.
IAD89-93 was developed by the Institute of Actuaries of
Australia based on Australian industry experience from
1989 to 1993.

Future bonus rates and interest credits assumed are those
supporied by the policy liabilities and the assumed future
experience, including allowance for the sharcholder’s right
to patticipate in distributions. Using these rates the net
present value of expecled futuce cashflows equals the value
of assets supporting the business.

For participating whole of life and endowment business,
the Company’s policy 15 10 set bonus rates such that, over
long periods. the returns to policy owners (as a group, bul
not necessarily individually) are commensurate with he
investment returmns achieved on relevant assets, together
with other sources of profit arising from this business. For
participanisg investment account business crediting rates
are set such that over long periods policy owners (as a
aroup, bul not necessarily individually) receive full
investment earnings on their accounts less a deduction of
explicit fees and charges. Distributions are split between
policy owncrs and shaicholder with the valvation allowing
for the sharcholder to participate in distributions ai the
maximum allowable rate of 20%. In determining
policyowner distributions consideration is given to equity
between generations of policy owners and equity between
the various classes and sizes of policies in force.

Adjustments
reflect  recent

ratcs.

None

No changes
approach

updated
experience,
with a decrease in assumed

in

to




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
INOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Paticy Liabilities (Continued)
Other Requirements
The Life Act requires companies to meet prudential standards of solvency. The solvency requirements are determined in

accordance with {iie Actuarial Standard 2.04 “Solvency Standard” issued by the LIASB under the Life Act. For the
purposes of note 32, minimum termination values have been determined in accordance with Actuarial Standards 4.02
“Minimum Surrender Values and Paid Up Values’ and 2.04.

Sensitivity Analysis — insurance contracts
The company conducts sensitivity analyses to quantify the exposure to risk of changes in the key underlying variables that

affect profits. The valuations included in the reported results and the Company’s best estimate of fulure performance are
calculated using certain assumptions about these variables. The movement in any key variable will impact the performance
and net assets of the Company and as such represents a risk.

Variable Impact of movement in underlving variable
Expense An increase in the level or inflationary growth of expenses over assumed levels would

decrease profit and shareholders’ equity.

For lump sum risk business other than lifelime arnuitics, greater mortality, TPD or trauma
rates would lead to higher levels of claims occurring, increasing associated claim cost and
therefore reducing profit and shareholders equity. For lifetime annuities greater monality rate
would lead to a shorter duration of regular payments, and therefore increasing profit and

shareholder equity.

Mortahty, TPD and
Trauma rates

The cost of health-related claims depends on beth the incidence of policyholders becoming ill
and the duration which they remain ill. Higher than expected incidence and duration would be
likely to increase claimn costs, reducing profit and shareholders equity.

Morbidity rates
(disability income)

An increase in discontinuance rates at earlier durations has a negative clfect, reducing profit
and shareholder equity as it affects the ability to recover acquisition expenscs and
COMMIssions.

Discontinuance

For life insurance contracts which are accounted for under AS 1.04, amounts of liabilities. income or expense recognised in
the period are onlikely to be sensitive to changes in variables even if those chanucs may have an impact on future profit

margins.

The 1able betow illustrates how changes in key assumiptions would impact the current period reported profit and policy

liabilities and equity at 30 June 2006 of the company.

Profit/(loss)
(net of reinsurance)

Variable Change*

Maintenance expenses + 10% increase

Moratity and lump sum + 10% increase

morbidity

Morbidity - disability 10% incrcase in incidence
tncome and decrease in recovery rates

Discontinuance rates +10% increase

* change 15 a relative change.

Changt in insurance
coniract habilily
(net of reinsurance)

$m $m
0.1 0.2

0.3 0.7)
(3.6) 5.1

The (able below tllustrates the effects sf changes in actuarial assumptions from 30 June 2005 1o 30 June 2006.

Effect on future protit
marging
$000

increase/(decrease?

Assumption Category

Discount rates (risk business) -

Discount rates (participating business) 134
Mortality and morbidity 0.6
l.apse and surrendcr rates 23.5
Maintenance expenses (4.3)
{4.5)

Premium rate changes

Eftect on policy liabilities

$000
increase/(decrease)
(3.5)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

5. RISK MANACEMENT
The consolidated entily’s financial condilion and operating activities are affected by a numnber of \ey risks. The

consolidated entity has implemented a general risk management framework to mitigate those risks.

General risk management framework
A structured risk management framework has been implemented throughout the consolidated entity in respect of all
risks. The framework comprises organisational structure, policies, methodologies, processes, and delegation of

authority to assume and approve risk, monitoring and reporting requirements.

The risk management framework 1s continuing to evolve in the consolidated entity and a niumber of initiatives are
underway to enhance practices including the on-going development of an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework to enhance accountabilities, reporting and practices. The ERM framework has been used to define
accourtabilities for oversighting, monitoring and advising, and managcment of the universe of risks inherent 1 the
business. The universe of risks includes credit, market, liquidily, insurance, compliance. operational, reputational and
strategic risks.

The consolidated entity is in the process of adopting a robust Economic Capital framework to identify risk capilal al
both a business unit level and comprehensively across the group and to augment business unit performance
measurement framework.

The Board of Directors js responsible for approving the consolidated entity’s risk appetite, strategy and policy and
oversighting managemenl'’s activities to monitor and control risk consistent with approved risk appetite. The Risk
Commiltee has delegated authority from the Board to approve and oversee the processes used to identify. evaluate
and manage risk and recommends the Group's risk appetite to the Board. Management has the primary responsibility
and accountability for embedding the risk management framework within the business operations of the consolidated
entity Group functions such as Risk provide a monitoring and advisory function on an independent basis. These
functions facilitate the reporting of the status, appropriateness and quality of our risk management capabilities to the
Risk Compittee and the management of risk.

The general risk management framework provides an ongoing process for recognising and evaluating risks,
development and nnplementation of both mitigation strategies and monitorinz tools. All risks and their mitigators are
documented in Risk Registers that are maintained at a business unit level and consolidated on a group basis. Risk
Registers are reviewed annually. Each Register is signed off by the manavers of the business wunit and th: relevant
executive. Consolidated Risk Registers are endorsed by the Exccutive Risk Commintee and submitted 10 provide
assurance to the Risk Committee that management have identified the key risks including business continuity facing

the Group.

Management is reguired as part of the monthly Due Diligence process to identify and report any events which have
occurred and any breaches in authorities. policies or legislative requirements. These reports are endorsed through
management and executives and included in the Chief Executive Officer’s Due Diligence Report to the Risk

Commiltee.

Thure are a number of compliance, risk management and review departments within the consolidated entity who are
responsible for monitoring, reviewing and reporting on specific areas of the consohdaled entity’s operations. Thuse
depantments wiclude Group Risk Policy, Credit Appioval, Ciedit Recovery, Credit Risk Systemns, Credit Review,
Group Compliance and Assurance, Invesiment Conmpliance, Group Operational Risk and Croup Market Risk. These
units report to the Risk Committee.

The Assurance funcuon independently examines and evaluates the adequacy and eficctiveness of the Group's control
environmenl across sk management syslems, operations and governance processes. Assurance makes reports
independeatly to the Audit Committee and provides summaries of all audit repors. together with details of
management's action plans to rectify any noted weaknesses, to the Execunve Risk Commitiee and the Audil
Committee. Any specific Assurance findings relating to the risk management framework are reported directly to the

Risk Comimnittee.

The Company has an approved Risk Management Statement which has been accepted by the Australian Prudential
Regulation Authority (“"APRA™) as appropriate guidelines for the investment of the entities™ funds including the use
of derivatives. More detailed discussion on this is contained in note 27.
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S. RISK MANAGEMU ST (Continued)

General risk management framework (continued)

The Company has a sharcholder fiind and two statutory funds, being a Capital Guaranteed Fund and an Investment
Linked Fund. Within the Capital Guaranteed Fund therc are five sub-funds: Life Capital Guaranteed Funds No's 1
and 4, and Supcrannuation Capital Guaranteed No’s |, 4 and 5. Within the [nvestmem Linked Fund there are thirteen
sub- funds: the Life Capital Stable Fund, the Balanced Life Fund, the Superannuation Stable Fund, the Balanced
Superannuation Fund, the MS Cash Pool Fund, the MS Balanced Fund, the MS Capial Stable Fund, the MS High
Equity Fund. the Suncorp Metway Ausiralian Lquities Superannuation Fund, the Suncorp Melway International
Equities Superannuation Fund, the Suncorp Imputation Fund, the Suncorp Metway Bonds Fund and the Suncorp
Metway Property Fund. Each of these sub-funds has an investment mandate.

Insurance risk
Insurance risk is the risk thal inadequate or inappropriate product design, pricing, underwriting. reserving, claims
managemen? and rensurance management will expose an insurer 1o financial loss and consequent inability to meet its

liabilities.

Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risk

The Company's objective is to satisfactorily manage thesc risks in line with the risk management framcwork
approved by the Board. Various procedures are pul in place to control and mitigate the risks faced by the Company
depending on the nature of the risk. The Company’s exposure to all materia) risks ts oversighted by the Board Risk
Committee. Financial risks are generally monitored and controlled by the Risk Commitee to ensure that there is no
material asset and liability mismatching issues, taking into account the Company’s capital position. and other risks
such as liquidity risk and credit risk are maintained within acceptable limits.

In an effort to protect and increase sharcholder value, the Company actively manages its exposure 1o risks so that it
can react in a umely manner to changes in financial maikets, insurance cycles, and economic and political
environments, Risk exposures are managed osing various analysis and valuation techniques. including stochastic
modelling. to calculate the capital required to support adverse risk scenarios, along with other cash flow analyses,
prudent underwriting and diversified investing.

Insurance risks are controlied through adherence 10 underwriting procedures, adequate premium rates and sufficient
reinsurance arrangements. In relation to premium rates and reinsurance arrangements, the Company reccives advice
from the Appointed Actuary. in accordance with Section |16 of the Life Insurance Act 1995, Tight controls are also
maintained over claims management practices to ensure the correct and timely payment of insurance claims,

Capital
Capital is allocated by the company to the porttolios of contracts with similar risks or is held in a central reserve
based on management’s assessment of the risks 1o which each line of business is exposad and its view of the

profitability of the products that are sold.

The Company's insurance operations are subject to regulaiory capila) requirements which preseribe the amourit of
capital to be held depending on the 1ype, quality and concentration of investmenls held. In addition to the tests
required by regulatory standards. sensitivity tests are performed annually (and reported in the Financial Cendition
Report). to ascertaun the ability of the Statutory Funds to withstand various adverse “asset shock® scenarios. The
Company monitors its capital adequacy position on a moathly basis, in relation to both statutory 1cquirements (as set
out under actuarial standards) and its own intemal target policy.

Undenrvriting procedures

Underwriting 1s managed through a dedicited underwriting department, with formal underwriting limits and
appropriate training and development of underwrting staff  Individual policies carrying insurance risk are
underwritten on their merits and are generally not issued without having been examined and undenvritten
individually. Group risk insurance policies meeting certain criteria are underwritten on the merits of the employee
group as a whole. The underwriting process is periodically monitored by the Company’s internal auditors to ¢nsure
adequate controls arc in place over the underwriting process and that the controls are effective.
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continned)

Insurance risk (continued)
Terms and conditions of insurance business
The nature and terms of the insurance conlracts written is such (hat certain external variables can be identificd on

which related cash flows for claim payments depend.

The table provides an overview of the key varables upon which the timing and uncertainty of futuee cash flows of the
various life insurance and investment contracts issued by the Company depend.

Type of contract

Details of contract workings

Nature of compensation
for clatms

Key variables affecting
the timing and uncertainty
of future cashflows

Long-term non
participating  insurance
contracts with fixed and
guaranteed terms (Term
Life and Disability)

Conventionul life
msurance contracts
with discretioncry
participating  benefils

(Endowment and Whole
of Life)

Investment account
contracts

with discretionary
participaiing
Jeatures

Lifeiime Ammuity

Claims management

Guaranteed beneftls paid on
dealh and/or ill health that arc
fixed which are not at (he
discretion of the issuer

These policies combine life
insurance and savings. The
policyholder pays a regular
premium and receives the
specified sum assured plus any
accruing bonuses on death or
maturity. The sum insured is
specified at inception and
guaranteed. Reversionary
bonuses ure added annually,
which once added (vested) are
guaranieed. A further terminal
bonus may be added on death,
surrender or malurity.

The gross value of premiums
received is invested in the
investment account with fecs

and  premiums  for  any
assoctated  insurance  cover
being deducted from the
account balance. Interest is
credited regularly.

In exchange for an iniual

stngle premium, (hese policies
jrrovide a guaranteed regular
income for the ufe of Lhe
insured.

Benefits, defined by the
insurance contract, arc not
directly affected by the
pecformance of underlying
assets or the performance of
the contracts as whole.

Operating  profit  arising
from these contracts s
allocated 80:20% between
the  policyholders  and
sharcholders in accordance
with the Life Act. The
amount allocated to
Policyholders is held as an

Unvested pohcy  hability
untl it is distributed o
specific  policyholders as
bonuses.

The payment of the account

balance is  guaranteed.
Operating  profit  arising
from these contracts s
allocated between the
policyholders and
shareholder in accordance
with (he Lifc Act. The
amount allocated to

policyholders is held as an
unvested  pelicy  hability
until it is distributed to
specitic  policyholders as
interest credits

The amount of guaranteed
reguiar income s set at
inception  of the policy.
including any (ndexation.

Mortality, morbidity,
lapses. expenses and market
carning rates on the assets
backing the labilities.

Mortality, surrenders,
expenses and market
earning rates on the assets
backing the liabilities.

Surrenders, e¢xpenses  and
markel earning rates on the
assels backing the liabilities.

and
on

Longevity, expenses
market earning rates
assets backing labilities

Claims are managed through a dedicated claims management team, with formal claims acceptance limits and
appropriate training and development of stafT to ensure payment of all genuine claims. Claims experience is assessed
regularly and appropriate actuarial reserves are established to reflect up-to-date experience and any anticipated future
events. This includes reserves for claims incurred but not yet reported.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Insurance risk (continued)
Concentrations of insurance risk
The company writes a mixture of individual and group insurance business providing mortaiity, morbidity and annuity

benefit payments. The mix of business is monitored and managed to avoid inappropriate concentrations of risk.

Exposure to risk of large claims for individual lives is managed through the use of surplus reinsurance arrangements
whereby the Company’s maximum exposure to any individual life is capped. Suncorp Life & Superannuation
Limited cedes 1o specialist reinsurance companies a proportion of its portfolio or ceratin types of insurance visk. This
serves primarily to reduce the net liability on large risks (related to either an individual or group exposure), obtain
greater diversification of insurance risks and provide protection against large losses, The reinsurers bhave strong
Standard & Poor’s credit ratings from A+ to AAA. The Company reviews ils reinsurance management sirategy
annually, with the strategy approved by the Board Risk Commitiee.

Concentrations of risk by product type are managed through monitoring of the Company’s inforce life insurance
business and the mix of new business writien each year.

I'he Company’s group life portfolio includes an Industry fund that offers death and TPD protection to employers,
some with large workforces. Although a 50% quota share arrangement is in place for this policy, the concentration of
such workforces in single locations remains a factor that exposes the company (0 a higher risk of loss in the event of
an accident affecting the location where the insured employecs work. The Company examines its exposure to such
employers on a case by case baxis to ascertain the need for “catastrophe’ excess of loss reinsurance.

Credit risk
Crednt risk is the likelihood of future financial loss resulting from the failure of clients or counierpartics to mect

contractual payment obligations to the consolidated entity as and when they fall due. Credit risk occurs as a result of
placement of retnsurance programs with counterparties and investment in financial instruments.

The Board Risk Committee monitors the effectiveness of credit risk management in relation to life insurance
activities, including the investments and insurance portfolios. and reviews exposure to reinsurers. The consolidated
entity has no specific concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty acising from the use of financial
insiruments in managing the investment portfolio other than that normally arising through dealings on recormised
exchanges and off exchange dealings (over the counter contracis). The counterparties to over the counter contracts
are limited to companies with strong credit ratings from a recognised credit rating agency. These counterparties are
normally banks operating in Australia.

Credit risk from the use of financial instruments in investment management 15 controlled both by credit management
(credit rating and credit limit controls) and by counterparty diversification policies to limit exposure to any one
counterparty as a proportion of the investment portfolio.

Market risk
In its operations the consolidated entity 1< exposed to a variety of market risks. Market risk is the risk of loss of

current and future consolidated entity earnings from adverse moves in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities
prices, property prices and prices of aiier financial contracts including derivatives. The consolidated entity has a sk
management framework in place for market risk. The framework for each risk in described below. Derivative
financial tnstruiments are used to miticate market risk (refer to note 27).

Acset and liability management techniques

Assets are allocated 1o various assel classes in accordance with cxplicit risk and return objectives. Expected ponfolio
risks are quantiticd through various metrics including a Value at Risk framework. Simulations of expected asset
portfolio risk and returns are regularly conducted to ensurc alignment with long-run investment objectives. Duration
analysis is primarily used for interest-sensitive products and policies with long-term fixed payout patterns. Sensitivity
analyses are primarily vsed for participating products and simulate the impact of certain market fluctuation scenarios
on future cash tlows, fair values or forecasted camings. For non-discretionary participatory insurance products, such
as unit-linked products, the interest and market risks are passed on 1o the policyholder.

Management of market risk 15 generally less critical for short-term insurance products, as the amounts and timing of
claims do not vary significantly with interest rates or other market changes that affect the underlying investments.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2006

5. RISK MANAGEMEXNT (Continued)

Market risk (continued)
Asset and liability managcment techniques (continued)

The premiums received and (he investment retums (net investment income and realised gains and losses) provide
substantial liquidily to mect claims payments and associated expenses as they arise. Consequently, there is grealer
flexibility in investment strategies while managing investments io ensure sufficient liquidity to meet the claims as they

become due, based on actuarial assessments,

Intervest rate risk

{nterest rate risk is the risk of a loss of current and future consolidated entity earnings from adverse moves in interest
rates. Interest rate risk arises from the investments in interest bearing securities. Any change in fair value of
investiments in interest bearing securities are immediately reflected in the income statements in accordance with the

accounting policies discussed in note 1(h).

Derivative financial instruments are used to mitigate interest rate risk (refer (o note 27).

The repricing periods attributable to the consolidated entity at 30 June 2006 were:

Weighted ¥Floating

Average Interest 1 Yearor 2fo$S Over 5
Rate Rate iess Years Years Total
% $m Sm $m Im Sm
Cash and short term liquid assels 5.7% 4.5 - - - 4.5
Cash on deposit 4.3% 182.2 - - - 182.2
Macgin deposiis 4.2% 19.3 - - - 19.3
Receivables 8.3% 12.9 - - - 12,9
Fixed interest securities 6.0% - 1157 3923 78.1 586.1
Mongage backed securities 6.2% - 278.9 - - 278.9
Discount securities 5.8% - 289.5 - - 289.5
Floaling rate notes 6.4% - 279.7 - - 279.7
Money Market Securities 6.4% - 153.6 10.0 - 163.6
5.9% 2189 1,117.4 402.3 78.1 1.816.7
The repriciny periods attributable to the consolidated entity at 30 June 2005 were:
Weighted Floating
Average Interest 1 Yearor 2605 Over 5
Rate Rate less Years Vears Toral
% $m Sm Sm $m $m
Cash and short term liquid assets S 3% 3.3 - - - 33
Cash on deposit 5.2% 204 2 - - - 204.2
Margin deposits 4.1% 234 - - - 23.4
Receivables 8.5% 123 - - - 2.5
Fixed interest securities 6.2% 217.6 4057 1243 717.6
Mortgage backed securities 6.0% - 430.9 6.0 - 436.9
Discount securities 5.8% 188.9 - - 188.9
tloating rate notes 6.2% - 209.1 - - 200.1
Money Market Securities 6.1% - 97.0 68.3 - 165.8
5.9% 243.4 1,143.5 480.5 124.3 1.991.7
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (continued)
Foreien exchange risk
Foreiun exchange risk 1s the risk of a loss from adverse movements in exchange rates on open foreign currency

positions.

The statutory funds of the Company inves! in overseas assets. These assets back the liabilities within the funds. In the
Investment Linked Fund any investmen returms, whether positive or negative, are passed on to the policyholders. In

the Capital Guaranteed Fund, capital and declared interest are guarantced. The Fund maintains reserves in
accordance wilh the standards of the LIASB to meet the risk of diminution of value associated with foreign exchange

risk.

A controlled entity, Suncorp Investment Management Global Macro Trust enters into forward foreign exchange and
fulures contracts to provide capual appreciation by actively timing global currency, bond and equity markets using
quantitative models to generate the trade positions. The terms and conditions of the forward foreign exchange

contracts do not exceced one year.

Other markei risks
In addivon 10 cash and inmerest bearing securities, the investment porzfolios contain exposures to equity and property

markets. The invesiment mandate while providing higher rotums maust also consider the volatility of investment
returns and the impact of volatilily on both the capital adequacy and profitability of the business. To do this, the
investment mandate was developed using a value at risk framework. An acceplable level of risk was agreed and an
mvestment strategy was developed where the likely returns would fall within the agreed risk limils with a high degree
of confidence. The performance of (he investment mandate is regularly reviewed to ensurc the risks are within the
predicted limits. In accordance with the accounting policy discussed in note 1(h), these investments are measured at
fair value at cach balance date and changes in fair value are immediately reflected in the income stalements. These
principies also apply to investments through unitised vehicles.

Any overall downturn in the cquities markets may impact on the future results of the consolidated entity. The impact
of any significant movement is managed by ensuring that the investment portfolio (whether direct or through unitised
vehicles) consists of a diverse holding of Australian and overseas companies and through the limited use of derivative
financial instruments, as discussed in note 27.

Balance Sheet and Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk ts the risk of being unable 10 meet financial obligations us they fall duc. The Board Risk Commince has

responsibility for oversight of liquidity risk for 1he consolidated entity. Balance sheet risk is the risk to eamings and
capital arising fromy mismatches between assets and liabilities with varying malurily and repricing profiles, and from
mismatches in tero.

The ability 10 make claims payments in a timely manner is critical to the business of life insurance. The investment
portfolio mandates ensure that sufTicient cash deposits are available (0 mect day-to-day obligations.

Solvency margin requirements established by the Austratian Prudential Regulaticoin Authority ("APRA™) are in place
to reinforce safeguards for policyholders” interests, whick are primarily the ability to meet future claims payments Lo
policyholders The solvency margins measure the excess of the value of the insurers® asscts over the value of us
labilities, each elernem being determined in accordance with the applicable valuation rules. This margin must be
maintsined throughout the year, and takes into account the specific risks faced by the Company.

The Company maintzins a level of capital adequacy in accordance with Actuarial Standards issued by the LIASB.

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Operational risk is managed through the adoption of the consolidated entity's risk management
framework. Oncrational risk events are tracked and monitored via a central loss database and reported regularly to the
Executive Risi Committee and the Risk Committee.

Risks which cross all business units, such as business continuity and regulatory compliance, are coordinated centrally
by Group Operational Risk and Group Policy and Compliance departments respectively. These risks are owned and
managed by the Executive Risk Committee with monitoring by the Risk Committee. The Assurance department also
conducts regular audits (o assess the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and compliance with policy.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THY, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2008
Sm $m $m $m
6. PREMIUMS
Direct insurance premiums 705.7 5292 708.7 529.2
Direct consideration for deferred annuities - rollover
amounts 0.7 0.5 0.7 0.5
Policy conversions 101.5 92.7 101.5 927
Total insurance premium received or receivable 807.9 622.4 807.9 622.4
insurance premiums recognised as a change in
gross policy liabilities (Note 20)) (671.9) (509.0) (671.9) (509.0)
Total insurance premiurm revenue 136.0 113.4 136.0 113.4
Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m $m Sm Sm
7. INVESTMENT REVENUE
Interest, dividend and similar revenue sourced from:
equily securities 266.0 218.5 126.9 82.1
debt securities 70.2 94.3 119.0 93.1
property 14.3 31.6 43.7 46.9
other 0.1 (0.4) (0.5) 0.7

350.6 344.0 2891 222.8

Investment gains and (losscs) sourced from:

equity securities 229.3 72.1 501.5 2573
dcbt securities (16.8) 17.4 (18.9) 34.7
property 40.7 72.6 427 72.6
other (02) 103 9.3)  (1.49)

253.0 172.4 516.0 363.2

Total investment income 603.6 516.4 805.1 586.0
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2008 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm S
8. REVENUE FROM OPERATING AUIVITIES
Revenue from opcrating activities

Premium revenue (note 6) 136.0 113.4 136.0 113.4
Investment revenue including realised and unrealised gains

and losses:

Equity 495.3 290.6 628.4 3394

Debt 53.4 1.7 100.1 127.8

Property 55.0 104.2 86.4 119.5

Other net investment revenue including realised and

unreatised gains and (losses) 0.1) 9.9 (9.8) 0.7)

Total investment revenuc (note 7) 603.6° 516.4 805.1 586.0
Fees 274 233 26.6 209
Commissions 0.2 0.1 1.8 29
Amortisation of deferred entry fecs * (0.1) - 0.1) -
Interest income - - 0.2 0.2
Non life insurance operating income - - 1.7 21.7
Total other revenue 27.5 234 30.2 45.7
Reinsurance recoveries 20.0 21.9 20.0 21.9
Total revenue 787.1 675.1 991.3 767.0

* The adoption of AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts has resulted in the deferral of explicit entry fecs arising
from investment contracts over the expected life of the underlying contracts. Presentation of prior year balances
remains in accordance with previous GAAP.

Company Consolidatect

2006 2005 2006 2005

$m $m $m $m

9. CLAIMS

Death and disability claims 73.2 65.5 73.2 65.5
Maturities 116.4 91.3 116.4 91.3
Annuities 354 28.6 354 2846
Surrenders and terminations 321.6 2623 321.6 2623
Policy conversions 101.5 92.7 101.5 92.7

648.1 540.4 648.1 sS40 4

Claims expense recognised as a chanye in gross
policy habilities {(Note 20) {(570.2) (4067.2) (5702) (467.2)
77.9 73.2 77.9 73.2

Interim & terminal bonuses paid, mcluded in total
claims paid or payable 60 3.7 60 3.7
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 Jurne 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm Sm
t0. OPERATING EXPENSES
Policy acquisilion expenses:
commission 11.7 3.9 10.2 7.8
other 33.8 29.6 338 29.6
Policy maintenance expenses:
COMMISSION 5.0 4.4 5.0 4.4
other 5t.2 46.8 41.0 38.5
Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs * (7.5) - (7.5 -
Investment management expenses 14.1 1.5 1-4.1 11.35
Total administration expenscs - life insurance
activines 108.3 101.2 96.6 91.8
Amortisation of non-life deferred acquisition costs 3. (rn 3. “.1)
Administralion expenses - non-life insurance
activities 0.1 - 5.5 17.2
105.3 97.1 109.0 104.9

* The adoption of AASB 1038 Life Insurance Coniracts has resulted in the deferral of explicit entry fees arisiny,
from investment contracts over the expected life of the underlying contracts. Presentation of prior year balances
remains in accordance with previous GAAP.

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm $m $m Sm
ti. OPERATING RESULTS
Profit from operating activitics before income tax expense has becn
arrived at afler charging the following items:
Employee expenscs 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2
Total employec expenses 4.2 4. 472 4,2
Occupancy costs
Office remal 3.8 4.0 38 4.0
Other L.l 0.8 I.t 0.8
Total occupancy costs 49 4.8 4,9 4.8
Other expenses
Communications 3.8 3.5 38 3.5
Technology 17 2.1 1.7 2.1
Financial 5% 6.1 5.6 6.1
Marketing 40 4.7 4.0 4.7
Client service charges 23 1.4 23 1.1
Intra group expenses 72.4 594 6/.1 574
Other 1.} 0.9 1.1 0.9
Total other 00.8 78.1 8§5.6 76 1

All employees of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited and its controlled entities are employed by an entity not
within the consolidated entity and their associated costs are recharged to the Company through intra group

expenses,




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

12. TAXATION

(a) Income tax expense

Company Consolidated
2000 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm Sm
Recognised in the Income Statement
Current tax expense
Current year 363 49.3 38.2 50.1
Adjustments for prior years (0.7) (.0 (0.7) (1.1
35.6 48.2 37.5 49.0
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 39.6 15.9 39.6 15.9
Total income Lax expense in income statement 75.2 64.1 77.1 64.9
Numerical reconciliation berween income tax expense and
pre-tax net profit
Profit before tax 134.5 121.1 137.8 205.2
Income tax vsing the domestic corporation rate of 30%
(2005: 30%,) 404 36.2 41.4 61.5
[ncrease in income tax expense due 10:
Imputation gross up on dividends received - 0.) - 0.1
Non-deductible expenses 359 27.8 359 28.3
Decrease in income tax expense due to:
Tax exempt revenues - - - -
Intercompany dividend elimination 0.9) - - -
Tax incentives not recognised in income statement - - - -
income tax offsets and credits (0.2) (0.2) (0.2) 0.2)
Other - - - (25.0)
75.2 63.9 771 64.7
Under/(over) proviston in prior years - 0.2 - 02
Income tax expense on pre-tax nct profit 75.2 64.1 77.1 64.9

Prima facie income tax expense includes an amount of $74.5 miilion (20035: $62.1 million) atributable to the Jife insurance
company statutory funds. The income tax expense is partly determined on a product basis and partly determined on a profit
basis The income tax expense has been determined after aggregating various classes of business. each with different tax rates.
The rates of taxation applicable to the taxable income of significant classes of business are as follows:

Class of business 2006 2005
% %
Ordinary iife insurance busincss 30 30
Complying superannuation 15 15
Controlled companies 30 30
Current pension business Exempl Exempt
Non-complying superannuation 47 47
Immediate annuity business Lxempt Exempt
RSA business 15 15
Other business (including accident and disability) 30 30
Shareholder funds 30 30

Under the Government's changes to life insurance taxation which applied from 1 fuly 2000 (contained in the New Business

Tax System (Miscellaneous) Act (No.2) 2000). life insurers are taxed on all the profit made from their different activities,

That ts:

»  risk business is taxed on broadly the same basis as for general insurers:

» investment business is taxed on broadly the same basis as for other investment entities: and

e complying superannuation business held in a virtual pooled superannuation trust is taxed on broadly the same basis as for
pooled superannuation trusts.




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE ¢INANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

12. TAXATION {Continued)

Taxation basis
The principal elements for the calculation of the 1axable income for each class of business are as follows:

Assessable income
The assessable income for each taxable class of business in Australia includes:

- Complying superannuation business - taxable contributions transferred from superannuation funds, specified rollover

amounts and investment income.
»  Non-complying superannuation business - investmenl income.
®  Other business - accident and disability premiums eamed and investment income.
e Shareholder (general) funds and ordinary life insurance business - investment income.
» Retirement Savings Accounti business — taxable conlributions and investment income credited to policyholders.

The gains and losses on sale of investments to the extent referable to the complying superannuation business, are determined
under the capital gains tax provisions of the /ncome Tax Asszssment Act (ITAA). The exceptions are gains on fixed interest
securities and foreign vxchange gains or losses referable to the superannuation business which are taxed primarily vunder the

ordinayy income provisions.

The gains and losses on the sale of investments 1o the exicnt reierable to other taxable classes of business, are taxed primarily
under the ordinary income provisions with the capital gains tax provisions potentially applying depending on the circumstance.

Alloveable deductions
The allowable deductions for each taxable class of business in Australia include:

o Acquisition costs (such as commissions) in relation to investment related life insurance business, superannuation business

and “other business™.
. Other expenses referable (0 (he business (such as investmenl expenses).
. An allocation of the general management expenses of the Company.

These deductions are then allocated to each class of business in accordance with the basis specified in the ITAA (which inay
or may not reflect the allocation of the expense for accounling purposes).

Allowable deductions in ruspect of “other business™ within the hife funds also include accident and disability claims and the
movement during the period in the policy liability in respect of that business (which may dilTer from the policy liability
recognised for accounting purposas).

Basis of income tax apportionment

A notional income tax expense: is calculated for each product as if the product was invested within a stand-alone statutory
fund The difference betveen this and the aclual tax expense is apportioned 1o products having regard o their contribution to
the difTerence.

(b) Current tax liabilities
In accordance with the tux consohdation lcgistation, Suncorp-Metway Lid as the heud crbty of the Australian tax-consolidated

group has assumed the current tax liability initially recogmised by the miembers of the tax-consolidated group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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12. TAXATION (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Defurred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Consolidated

Intangible assels

Other investments

Deposits, notes, bonds and borrowings
Provisions

Deferred revenue

Other

Tax (assets) / liabilities

Set oft of tax

Nel tax (asscts) / liabilities

Company

Intangible assets

Other investments

Deposits, notes, bonds and borrowings
Provisions

Deferred revenue

Other

Tax (assets) / liabilities

Set off of tax

Net tax (asscts) / liabjlities

(d) Tax consolidation

Assets Liabilitres Net
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm $m $m Sm
- - 1.9 0.9 tt.9 0.9
- - 86.7 5.7 86.7 51.7
2.1 - - - 2.n -
0.7 0.1 - - 0.7) (0.1)
2.8 0.] 98.6 52.6 95.8 52.5
(2.8) (0.1) (2.8) (0.1) - -
- - 958 525 95.8 52.5
- - 11.9 0.9 11.9 0.9
- - 86.7 51.7 86.7 51.7
2.1 - - - 1) .
0.7 0.1 - - 0.7) 0 1)
2.8 0.} 98.6 52.6 95.8 5235
(2.8) {0.1) (2.8) 0.1) - -
- - 95.8 525 95.8 52.3

Suncorp-Metway Ltd and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entitics have elected to form a tax conwolidated group from |
July 2002. The accounting policy in relation to this legistation is set out in note 1(y).

On adoplion of the tax consolidation lugislation, the entities in the 1ax consoliduted group entered into a tax sharing azrcement
which, in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and scveral liabilily of the wholly-owned entities in the case of a default

by the head entity, Suncorp-Metway |.1d.

Under the tax sharing agreement, the wholly owned entities fully compensate the Company for any current tax payable
assumud. | he amounts receivable/payable under the agreement are at call.

A tax benefit of N1l (2005: 202 million) from the elections provided by the consolidation legislation has been recognised in
the period, and is included in “Under/(over) provision in prior years™ shown at the beginning of this note.
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SUNCORY LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2003 2006 2005
$m Sm $m Sm
13. OUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Interest in prolit from ordinary activilies alter income tax - - - 81.7
Intcrest in retained profits at the end of the financial year - - - 731.2
Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm $m $m
(4. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Equity security investments
Directly held - - 2.534.9 1,690.4
Unit trusts 2,549.6 t,865.2 7779 600.2
Investments in controlled entitics 0.1 0. - -
Total equities 2,549.7 1,865.3 3,312.8 2.290.6
Debt security investments
Interest bearing securities:
private sector - unsecurcd 99.5 68.9 1,675.4 1.639.5
public sector - - - 9.2
semi public sector - - 47.1 132.4
Loans and advances:
- loans on policies 5.0 49 5.0 4.9
- non-forfeiture loans 7.9 7.7 79 7.7
Unit trusts 1,236.5 1,468.1 341.1 234.3
Total debt 1,348.9  1,549.6 _ 2.076.5 _ 2,028.0
Property investments
Unit trusts 382.7 290.6 527.0 290.6
Total property 382.7 290.6 527.0 290.6
Other investments 0.1 (0.8) 0.2 (2.0)
Total other financial assets 4,281 4 3.704.7 5,916.5 4,607.2

All investment asscts (excluding investmenis in controlled entities) are designated as fair value through the profit and loss.
Changes 1n fair value are immediately retlected in the income statements. The balance sheets. therefore, reflect the fair value
ot financial instruments. The methods adopted in valuation of investments and significant assumnptions are discussed in note

t(h).

The investment in controlled entities (excluding controlled unit trusts) is $97.471 (2005: §147.323).

Amounts expected to be recovered or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting date

Investment assets of the life statutory funds comprising cash, equity securities, debt securities, property securities and other
financial assets are held to back investment contract liabilities amounting 1o $1,358.8 million (2003: $1.224.2 million) and life
insurance contract liabilities amounting to $2,347.6 million (2005: $2,019.9 million). Investment assets are traded on a regular

basis taking into account the movements in liabilitics as well as incoming cash flows.
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SUNCORP LIF)Y, & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Hm Sm Sm
1S. LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Loans, deposits and advances:
parent entity 1.1 53 1.1 53
controlled entities ol the ultimate parent entity 5.7 5.5 5.7 5.5
controlled entities 1.6 - - -
8.4 10.8 6.8 10.8
Reinsurance recoveries receivable 8.5 92 8.5 9.2
Investment income accrued 188.5 178.4 62.0 66.0
Other debtors 1.8 2.1 2.0 2.3
_ 2072 2005 793 883
Expected (o be realised with 12 months 206.5 1998 78.6 87.6
Expected to be realised in more than 12 months 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
207.2  200.5 793 883
Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm $m $mn
16. INTANGIBLES
Deferred acquisition costs 39.8 7.3 39.8 7.3
39.8 7.3 39.8 7.3
Expected to be realised with 12 months 11.8 2.0 11.8 2.0
Expected to be realtsed in more than |12 months 28.0 53 28.0 5.3
39.8 7.3 39.8 7.3
Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 200S
Sm $m Sm Sm
17. OTHER ASSETS
Accrued interest 03 0.2 13.6 19.5
Other 0.5 0.2 1.9 2.5
0.8 0.4 15.5 22.0
Expected to be realised with 12 months n.3g 04 i5.3 22.0
0.8 04 1S5 22.0




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm Sm
18. PAYABLFS
Policy clzims in process of seitlement 23.4 21.0 23.4 21.0
Sundry credtiors and accrued expenses 27.2 18.1 89.2 46.5
Deferred service fees 7.0 - 7.0 -
Other 16.9 9.5 48.7 61.8
74.5 48.6 168.3 129.3
Expected to be seltled with 12 months 69.7 48.6 163.5 1293
Expected to be seuled in more than 12 months 4.8 - 4.8 -
74.5 48.6 168.3 129.3
Company Cousolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm $m $m Sm
19. DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Unsecured
parent entity 38.6 53.8 384 53.9
controlled entities of the ultimate parent entity 0.4 3 0.4 0.3
controlled entities - 0.8 -
39.0 54.9 38.8 54.2
Expected to be settled with 12 months 39.0 54.9 38.8 54.2
39.0 54.9 38.8 54.2




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCJAL. STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

Company
2006 2003
$m Sm
20. POLICY LIABILITIES
(A) Policy liabilitis
Gross policy liabilities 3,906.4  3,244.1
Gross policy liabilities ceded under reinsurance (60.6) (43.3)
Net policy liabilities 3,845.8  3,200.8
(B) Life insurance contract policy liabilities
Gross policy liabilities at the beginning of the year - -
Change in accounting policy 2,022.7 -
2,022.7 -
Insurance premiums recogmsed as a change in gross policy liabilities (Note 6) 331.3 -
Claims expense recognised as a change in gross policy liabilities (Note 9) (312.6) -
Increase (decrease) in life insurance contract policy Jiabilities reflected in the income
siatement 306.2 -
Increase (decrease) in gross policy liabilities 324.9 -
Gross policy habilities at the end of the year 2.347.6 -
(C) Life investment contract policy liabilities
Gross policy habilities at the beginning of the year - -
Change in accounting policy 1,267.9 -
).267.9 -
Life investment contract contributions recognised in policy liabilities (Note 6) 340.6 -
Life investment conteact withdrawals recognised in policy liabilities (Note 9) (257.6) -
Increase (decrease) in life investment contract policy liabilities reflected in the income
statement 207.9 -
Increase (decrease) in gross policy liabililies 290.9 -
Gross policy habilities at the end of the year 1,558.8 -
(D) Life insurance business policy liabilities
Gross policy liabilities at the beginning of the year - 28049
Insurance premiums recognised as a change 1n gross policy hiabilities (Note 6) - 509.0
Claims expense recognised as a change in aross policy liabilivies (Note 9) - (467.2)
Increase {decrease) in lif¢ insurance business contract policy liabilitics reflected in the
income statement - 397.1
Increase (decrease) in gross policy liabilities - 439.2
Gross policy liabtlities at the end of the year - 32441
(E) Gross policy liabilities ceded
Gross pohcy lubilines ceded at the beginning of the year 43.3 243
Increase (decrease) in gross policy liabilities ceded 17.3 19.0
Grosx policy luibilities ceded al the end of the year 60.6 433
(F) Unvested policyowner benefits liability
Unvested policyowner benefits at the beginning of the year 3255 348.1
Increase (decrease) in unvested policyowner benefits (55.2) (24.3)
AIFRS adjustment to deferred ax liabil:ty 1.9 (0.3)
l nvested policyowner benefits al the cnd of'the voar 270.2 53235

age



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPIRANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

20. POLICY LIABILITIES (Continzed)

21.

Previous
Current Basis (v) Basis (jv)
2006 2008 2006
Sm Sm $m
(G) Components of net policy liabilities - insurance contracts
(2005: alt insurance and investment contracts)
Best estimate linbility
Value of fuwre policy benefits (i) 1,956.2  3.099.8 1,893.8
Value of future expenses 216.6 263.1 203.7
Value of unrecouped acquisition expenses (126.7)  (148.2) (113.6)
Balance of future premiums (1,209.4) (1,164.4) (1,045.1)
Total best estimate liability 8367 2.050.3 938.8
Value of futore profits
Policy owner bonuses (ii) 964.7 747.0 891.3
Shareholder profit marains 310.2 263.1 2823
Total value of future profits 1,2749  1,010.1 1,173.6
Total valuce of declared bonuses (jii) 175.3 140.4 1753
Total net policy tiabitities 2,2869 32008 2,287.7

Explanatory note:

1 Future policy benefits include bonuses credited to policy owners in prior pertiods but exclude current period
bonuses (as set out in the income statement) and luture bonuses (as set out in (ii)). Where business i1s valued
by other than projection techniques, future policy benefits includes the account balance.

i, Future bonuses exclude current period bonuses.

i, Current year declared bonuses vatued in accordance with the Actuarial Standard.

iv. Using the actuarial methods and assumptions relevant at the previous reporting date, but on current in force
business.

V. Using the acluarial methods and assumptions relevant at the current reporting date on current in force
business.

Capital Guarantecs
Included in life insurance contract habilitics are amounts in respect of contracts with discretionary participation features.
The amount of policy liabilitics 1hat relates (o the guarantecd element of these contracts is $1.076 million.

Amounts expected to be recovercd or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting date

For the majority of the investment contract and life insuranec contract liabilitics, there is no fixed settlement date. Based
on Suncorp 1.ife & Superann:ation Limited's assumptions as to likely withdrawal patterns in the various product groups,
113 estimated that approximately $745 million may be settled within 12 months of the reporting date.  Amount settled in
2005 was $547 miltion.

Company Consolidat:d
OCLVSIDE BENEFICQIAL INTERESTS 2006 2005 2006 2008
$m Sm $m Sm
Outside beneficial interests - - 1,429.8 -

The change in accounting policy adopted in 2006 has resulted in recognising outside beneficial interests (previously
classified as outside equity interests). Qutside benelicial interests represent unitholder funds held and managed in
controlled managed investment schemes by parties other than Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited and presented as a
liability in accordance with AASB 132 Financial Instrumentis: Disclosure and Presentation,




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year eﬂed 30 June 2006

Company Consolidated
22. SHARE CAPITAL 2006 2003 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm $m
Issued and paid up capital
39,000,000 ordinary shares. each fully paid (2005: 39,000,000) 39.0 39.0 39.0 39.0
39.0 39.0 39.0 39.0

Ordinary Shares

Effective | July 1998, the Company Law Review Act abolished the concepl of par value shares and the concept of
authorised capital. Accordingly, the Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its i1ssucd

shares.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled 1o receive dividends as declared from time 1o Lime and are entilled to one vole per

share at the shareholders’ meeting.

In the event of winding up of the Company, ordinary shareholders rank after all other sharcholders and creditors and are

fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation.

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm $m $m

23. RETAINED PROFITS

Retained profits at the beginning of the financia) year 2232 210.9 228.7 2109

Effect of change in accounting policy (34.4) (12.7) (34.4) (8.8)

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year - restated 188.8 198.2 194.3 202.1

Net profit attributable 10 members of the parent entity 593 57.0 60.7 58.6

Dividends paid (43.0) (32.0) (43.0) (32.0)

Retained profits at the end of the Iinnncial ycar 205.1 223.2 212.0 228.7
24. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATFRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Outside
Share Retained Equity
Capital Profits Total Interests  Total equity
Sm Sm Sm Sm Sm

Balance at | July 2005 390 2287 267.7 731.2 998 9
Effect of change in accounting policy - remeasure - (34.4) (34.9) (34.4)
Effect of change in accounting policy - reclassify - - (731.2) (731 2)
Balancu at | July 2005 - restatcd 39.0 1043 2333 - 2333
l'otal recognised income and expense - 60.7 607 - 60.7
Dividends to sharcholders - _(43.0) (43.0) - (13.0)
Buiance at 30 June 2006 39.0 212.0 251.0 2310

| ’;1?_}1‘" _-H\



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED

“OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

__For the year ended 30 June 2006

25. DIVIDENDS

Ordinary shares:
Final dividend $1.026 (2005: $0.82) per fully paid share
Interim dividend $0.077 (2003: $nil) per fully paid share

Redeemable preference shares:
Final dividend nil (2005: $0.82) per fully paid share

Dividends not recognised at year end

In addition 1o the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommunded the payment of a dividend of

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
$m Sm Sm $m
40.0 8.2 40.0 82
30 - 3.0 -
- 23.8 - 23.8
43.0 32.0 43.0 32.0

550 million ($1.282 per fully paid ordinary share). The aggregate amount of the proposed dividend expected to be

paid a1 a date to be set is not recogni<ed in the balance sheaets,

Franking credits

The consolidated entily does not have any franking credits available to sharcholders for subsequent financia! years.
On | July 2002, the consolidaled entity adopted the Tax Consolidations legislation which requires a tax-consolidation
group to keep a single franking account. Accordingly all tranking credits are recognised in Suncorp-Metway Ltd as

the bead entity of the tax-consolidation group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

26. RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTHIVITIES

Company Consolidated
2006 2008 2006 2005
$m $m Sm Sm
Profit for the year 59.3 57.0 60.7 58.6

Classified as investing activities
Changes in net market value of investments realised and

unrealised:
equily securities (229.3) (72.1) (501.5) (257.3)
debt securities 16.8 (17.4) 18.9 (34.7)
property securities (40.7) (72.6) 42.7) (72.6)
other securities 0.2 (10.3) 9.3 1.4
Change in assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in
Insurance and other recoveries receivabie (16.6) 21.1) (16.6) (AR
Premiums outstanding (1.2) (0.2) (1.2) 0.2)
Interest receivable (0.1) 0.1 S.9 (10.7)
Dividends receivable - 2.0 (0.4) 3.3)
Property income receivable (12.5) (114.1) (12.9) 9.0
Investment income receivables (0.2) (. (0.2) .
Prepaymenls and delurred expensces (10.7) - (10.7) -
Other deblors - 4.9) 09 (6.4)
Increase (decrease) in:
Net movement in tax balances 39.6 16.0 39.6 16.0
Premiums in advance 0.1 0. 0.1 0.1
Claims outstanding 24 3.9 2.4 3.9
Reinsurance premiums paid 1.5 03 1.5 0.3
Policy liabilities 615.8 439.2 615.8 4392
Policy owner retained profits (35.2) (24.6) (552) (24.6)
Other payables 7.4 39 (13.1) (68.7)
Other liabilities 53 2.0 40.9 21.8
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 3819 186.1 141.5 49.6
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at bank 368 273 45.2 32.1
Cash deposits and short term securities included in investment
assets - Interest bearing sccurities 74.0 68.9 99.8 205.4

110.8 96.2 [iS.0 237.5

Pace 4%



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUME.NTS

Risk Management Statement
The Risk Management Stalement, aprroved by the Board and issu:d pursuant o the requirements of APRA.

establishes the basis on which derivative financial instrumcnts may be used within the investment portfolios. The
preparation and enforcement of the statement is a critical requirement for registercd life insurers which use denvative
financial instruments. The Risk Management Statement forms the basis of the discussion in this note on derivative
financial instruments.

Definition
A derivative financial instrument is defined as a financial contract whose vatue depends on or is derived from assets,

liabilities, or indexes (the underlying asset). Derivatives include a wide assortment of instruments such as forwards,
futures, options, share ratios, warrant. swaps and other composites. These instruments may be traded on rccognised
exchanges or directly between counterparties.

Objectives
The Company sees the use of derivatives as consistent with the objectives of the overall investment sirategies of the

investment portfolios, and one of the means by which these strategies are implemented. Derivatives will only be used
for the reasons of efficiency. arbitrage and risk reduction.

Limits on derivative usage

The Risk Management Statement and investment mandates strictly prohibit the use of derivatives for speculative
purposes or for leveraged (rading Leverage is herc defined as creating a portfolio which would have sensitivily to an
underlying economic or financial variable which is creater than could be achieved using only physical securities.
Exposure limits have been established with respect 1o the various asset classes for each client portfolio. Within each
asset class. denvative exposure limits are identified in the Risk Management Staternent and bmits have been
established on daily transaction levels. For over the counter (OTC) decivatives authorised counter-parties must have
a minimum Standard and Poors rating of “A™ or the equivalent credit rating by a recognised credit rating agency

An independent compliance officer is responsible for monitoring these positions to ensure they do not exceed the
authorities established in the investment mandate. Regular monjtoring and control of these activities is the
responsibility of the Risk Committee and intemal audit.

Activities
The use of derivative financial instrunents to mitigate market risk. interest rate risk and currency risk includes the use
of exchange traded bill and bond funures, cquity indey futures. OTC forward exchange vontracts and interest rate and

cquity options.

Where the probability of exercising an option is less than one, a difference arises between nolional principal and face
value. For the years ended 2006 and 2005, notional principal umounts are equal to face value due to the absence of
options in the mvestment portfolio. However, in future periods options may form part of the mvestment pontfolio
resulting tn a diffecence between notional principal and face value amounts.

The “face value® is the notional or contractual amount of the ucrivatives. This amount acts as reference value upon
which interest payments and ne! scuitlements can be caiculated and on which revaivation is based.

The “fair valuc® of the derivative contract vepresents the net present value of the cash inflows and outflows required
to extingyish the rights and obligations arising from the derivative in an orderly markel as at reporting date.  Fair
value does not indicate future gains or losses, but rather the unrealised gains and losses from marking to market all
derivatives at a pacticular point in time. The fair value of derivative contracts vary over time depending on
movements in interest and exchange rates and hedging strategies used.

erivative financial instruments are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are reflected in the income
stuiemuents. The net fair values of the Company’s derivative tinancial instruments at balance date are as follows:

Smmn oo e = = IW[IJ-::,_\_TK)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

27.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

28.

Less than one year
Greater than one year

2006 Financial year
Forwurd exchange contracls
[nterest rate futures

Equity futures

2005 Financial year
I'orward exchangc contracts
Interest rate futures

Equity futures

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Audit services
Auditors of the Company - KPMG
- Auditand review of finuncial reports

Other services
Auditors of the Company - KPMG
- Other assurance services

Otuer Aoditors
- Audit and review of financial reports (inanaged funds)
Total remuneration

Company

(Notional Principal
Amount
2006 2005
Sm $m

1,022} 1,068.5

Consolidated

Notional Principal
Amount
2006 2005
Sm Sm

3,174.5 2,232.1

1,022.1 1,068.5

3,174.5 2.232.1

Company Cousolidated
Face Fair Face Fair
Value Value Value Yalue
$m Sm $m $m
19.4 - 179.5 0.2
2134 ©0.7) 1,651.1 (1.0)
789.3 {25.1) 1.343.9 (18.8)
1,022.1 (25.8) 3,174.5 (19.6)
236.2 03 4254 2.4)
267.7 0.6 1,043.9 0.9
564.6 (3.0) 762.8 (2.9)
1,068.5 (3.2) 2.232.1 (4.4)
Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
) S $ h)
350,421 174623 424,17y 231.200

45,700 39.000

70.620 75,385

56.200 46.600

49,720 98,085

466.74) 289.010

530,091 373885

Fees for services rendered by the entity’s auditor in relation 1o the statutory audit are bome by the ultimate parent

company. Suncorp-Metway Litd.

Fees for services rendered by the auditors in relation to the audit of the EasySuper and Superplan managed funds are

paid by the Company
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20, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent liabilities considered remote

There are claims and possible claims against the Company. the aggregate amount of which cannot be readily
quantified. Where considered appropriate, legal advice has been obtained. The Company does not considur that the
outcome of any such claims known 1o exist at the date of this report, either individually or ir- aggregale, are likely to
have a material effect on its operations or financial position. The directors are of the opirion that provisions are not
required in respect of these matters. as il is not probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required

or the amount i1s not capable of reliable measurement.

Details of contingent liabilitics for which no provisions are included in these financial reports are as follows:

Derivative Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters in(o various types of investment contracts, including

derivative positions, that can give rise to contingent liabilities, It is not expected that any significant Labihty will
arise from these types of transactions as any losses or gains are offset by corresponding gains or losses on the

underlying exposures.

Tax Consolidation :
The Company and its wholly owned controlled entitics are members of a tax-consolidated group, and arc jointly and

severally liable for the income tax obligations of that group in the event that the head entity of the group defaults in
its payment obligations to the Australian Tax Office. The tax sharing agreements have effect to limit this joint and
several hability 1o an amount relative to its contribution to group profit. The head entity has nol been in defaul( of its
payment obligations and the directors are of the opinion that the probability of default is remote.

Litigation

The Company has buen advised of a potential claim by a third party for which a likely scitlement by the Company is
considered probable. The directors do nol expect the outcomc any such claim 10 have a material effect on the
consolidated entity's financial posilion and. in the directors’ opinion, disclosure of any further information about the

above matter would be prejudicial to the intercsts of the Company.

Contingent asscls
There are claims and possible claims made by the Company against external parties, the aggregate amount of which

canno! be readily quantified. Where considered appropriate, legal advice has been obtained. The Company does not
consider that the outcome of any such claims known 1o exist at the date of this reporl, either mdividually or in
aggregate, are likely to have a material cffect on its operations or financial position. The directors are of the opinion
that the receivables are not required in respect of these matters, as it is nol probable thal {uture economic benefits will
eventuate or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

Litigation
The Company is making a claim for payments made to a third party for which the likely success of the claim is
considered probable. In the directors’ opinion, disclosure of any further information about the above matter would be

prejudicial to the interests of the Company.




SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
o ___ Forthe year ended 30 June 2006
- St:«;tutory Funds Shareholder Fund  Total Interests
2006 2005 2006 2008 2006 2005

$m Sm Sm $m $m Sm
30. SUMMARY OF SHAREHOLDER'S
INTEREFSTS

Operating profit aflter income tax 54.2 51.2 S 5.8 59.3 57.0
Shareholders' retained profits at the beginning of

the financial year 169.5 154.5 S3.7 56.4 223.2 210.9
Effect of change in accounting policy (34.5) 0.2) 0.1 (12.5) 344y (2.7
Transfers of profits between funds (45.3)  (36.0) 453 36.0

Dividends paid - (43.0)  (32.0)  (43.0) (32.0)

Shareholders’ retained profits at the end of the

financial year 143.9 169.5 61.2 53.7 205.1 223.2
Share capital (note 22) - - 39.0 39.0 39.0 39.0
Capital ransfers to statutory funds 29.8 20.8 (29.8) (29.3) - -

Total shareholder's equity  (note 36(C)) 173.7 199.3 70.4 62.9 2441 262.2

Componernts of shareholdcr's interests in statutory

Sfunds:
Sharcholders' eetained profits - participating

businuvss 67.6 81.0
Shareholders’ retained profits - non-

participating business 76.3 88.5
Shareholder's capital 20.8 29.8

173.7 199.5

Shareholder’s access to the retained profits and shareholder’s capital in the statutory funds is restricted to the extent
that these monies are required to meet Solvency and Capital Adequacy Standards under the Life Act.

Pape 52



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO YHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

3(. RECONCILIATION TO LIV, ACT OPERATING PROFITS & RETAINED PROFIT OF STATUTORY
“UNDS

(A) Allocation of operating profit

(B)

()

The general principles adopted in the allocation of operating profit to participating policy owners and the
shareholder, which arc in accordance with the Life Act and the Company’s Articles of Association. are as follows:

Participating busmess
Al profits, including net invesiment returns on policy owners’ retained profils and sharcholder panicipating retained

profits are allocated 80 percent 1o policy owners and 20 percent to the shareholder.

Non-participating business
All profits, including net investment returns on shareholder capital and shareholder non-participating retained profils,
are allocated to the shareholder.

Distribution of retained profits
The general principles adopted in the distribution of retained profits to participating policy owners and the

shareholder in accordance with the requirements in Section 62 of the Life Act arc as follows:

Shareholder’s retained profits in a statutory fund may be transferred to the shareholder fund subject to the statutory
fund’s capital requirements being mainiained and the shareholder's retzined profits from participating business being
at Icast 25 percent of policy owners’ retained profits,

Distributions ol profits to participating policy owners are made in the form relevant 1o the type of policy.
Conventional business profits are distributed by way of reversionary and terminal bonuses and investment account
business profits are distributed by way of crediting interest to policy owners.

Bonuses and inlerest credits for individual product lines are determined by the Company on the principle of the
equitable reatment of participating policy owners.

Policy owners' Shareholder's Total Statutory
interests interests Funds
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Sm Sm Sm Sm $m $m
Details of operating profits
Operating profit after income tax - - 54.2 51.2 542 51.2
Bonuses provided for or paid in the current period:
interim & terminal bonus on claims paid 6.0 3.7 - - 6.0 3.7
declared bonus on in force policics 175.3 1404 - - 1755 140.4
[ncrease in policy owner relained profits (53.2) (243) - - (55.2) (24.3)
Life Act operating profit after income tax 1261 119.8 54.2 S1.2 (80.3 171.0
Sources of the operating profi:
rom non-investment linked business:
pdaiticipating business 126.1 1198 31.6 300 157.7 149.8
non-participating business - - 14.7 12.1 14.7 121
From investment linked business.
non-participating business - - ;i 9.1 7.9 9.1
1261 1198 54.2 312 180.3 171.0
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Policy owners’ Shareholder's Votal Statutory
intercsts interests Funds

2006 2008 2006 2005 2006 2005

Sm $m S$m $m 5m Sm

31. RECONCILIATION TO LIFE ACT OPERATING PROFIT
& RETAINED PROFITS OF STATUTORY FUNDS
(Continved)

(D) Details of retained profits

Rerained profits at the beginning of the financial year - - 169.5 154.5 169.5 154.5
Liability for unvested policyowner benefits (note 20) 323.5 348.1 - - 323.5 348.1
Life Act rctained profits at the beginning of the '

financixl year 3235 348)) 169.5 154.5 493.0 502.6
Life Act operating profit after income tax 126.1  119.8 54.2 51.2 180.3 17t.0
Effect of change in accounting policy 1.9 (0.3) (34.5) 0.2) (32.6) (0.5)
Transter to sharcholder's fund from participating

business (note 30) - - 453y  (36.0) (43.3) (36.0)
Provision for bonuses to participating policy

owners' (181.3) (144.1) - - (18).3) (144.1)
Life Act retaincd profits at the end of the

financial year 270.2 3238 143.9 169.5 414.1 493.0
Policy owner retained profits at the end of the

financial year (270.2) (323.5) - - (2702) (323.5)
Retained profits at the end of the financial year - - 143.9 169.5 143.9 169.5
Components of Life Act retained profits ut the end of
the financral vear:

Policy owners' interests 270.2  323.5 - - 270.2 323.5

Sharcholder’s interests in participating business - - 67.6 81.0 67.6 81.0

Shareholder's intcrests in non-participating

business - - 76.3 885 76.3 88.5

270.2 3235 143.9 169.5 4141 493.0

o - o Tooe 5l



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
_For the year ended 30 June 2006

32.SOLVENCY REQUIREMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FUNDS
Distribution of the retained profits is limited by the prudential capital requirements of Part 5 of the Life Act. the
detailed provisions of which arc specified by Actuarial Standards. The Solvency Standard prescribes a2 minimum

level of assets, known as the Solvency Requirement. for cach siatutory fund of the Company.

The solvency requirements, and the ratios in respect of those requirements, are as foilows:

Statutory Fund Statutory Fund Total Statutory

No.1 No.2 Funds
2006 2005 2006 20058 2006 2005
$m Sm $m Sm $m $m
Solvency requirement ‘At 24202 21736 1,604.7 12799 4,0249 3,453.5
Represented by:
Minimum termination value 1,909.2  1,70'.9 1,544.7 1,258.5 34539 2.960.4
Other liabilities 209.7 170.3 40.4 15.7 250.1 186.0
Solvency reserve 'B' 301.3 301.4 19.6 5.7 320.9 307.1
2,420.2  2,173.6 1,604.7 12799 40249 3453.5
Assets available for solvency reserve 'C 764.2 753.3 71.5 $3.2 8335.7 806.5
Comprising:

Excess of net policy liabilitics (includes policy
owner bonuses) over minimum termination

value 378.7 301.4 13.2 7.7y  391.9 2837
Nel asscts 1153 128.4 583 70.9 173.6 199.3
Liability for policy owner rctained profits at
end of year 270.2 3235 - - 270.2 323.5
764.2 7533 T1.5 55.2 835.7 806.5
Solvency reserve % (B/(A-B)) x 100 14.2% 16.1% 1.2% 0 4% 8. 7% 9.8%
Coverage of solvency reserve c/B 2.5 2.5 3.6 9.3 2.6 2.6

The minimum termination value is determincd in accordance with the Solvency Standard and is the base figure upon
which reserves against hability and asset risks arc layered in determining the solvency requirement. The minimum
termination value represents the minimum obligation of the Company to policy owners at reporling date.
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Management
Services
Insurance  lnvestment Element of
Contract Contract Investment
Business Business Contract Tota) Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2005
Sm $m Sm Sm Sm
33. STATEMENT OF SOURCES OF
OPERATING PROFIT
Life Act sharcholdey’ profit in the statutory
funds
The shareholder’s operating profit after income tax
in the statutory funds is represented by:
Investment camings on shareholder’s retained
profits and capital 13.8 - 4.6 18.4 20.7
Emergence of shareholder's planned profits 20.1 - - 29 1 31.4
Experience profit (loss) 2.7 - 33 6.0 (1.0)
(Losses Capitalised)/Reversal of capitalised loss 0.7 - - 0.7 0.1
Life Act shareholders® operating profit after
income tax 463 - 7.9 54.2 512
Cumulative losses carried forward at the end of
the financial year 1.4 - - 1.4 .o
Life Act policy owners' operating profitin the
statutory funds
The Life Act policy owners' operating profit after
income tax in the statutory funds is represented by:
Invesiment camings on retained profits 35.1 - - 35.1 38.6
Emergence of policy owner planned profits 949 - - 94.9 87.8
Experience profiv(loss) (3.9) - - e (6.6)
Life Act policy owners’ operating profit after
income tax 126.1 - - 126.1 119.8

34. DISCLOSURES ON ASSET RESTRICTIONS, MANAGED ASSETS AND TRUSTEE ACTIVITIES

Restrictions on assets

Investments held in the Life Statutory Funds can only be used within the restrictions imposed under the Life Act and the
Constiwtion of the Company. The main restricticais are that the assets in a fund can only be used 10 meel the liabilities
and expenses of that fund. (0 acquirc ivestments to further the business of the fund, or as distributions. Participating
policy owners can receive a distribution when solvency requirements are mel. whilst shareholders can only receive a
distribubion when the highar favel of capual adequacy requirements are met.

Restrictions on Trust’s funds
Restrictions exist on the ability of the consolidated entity to access funds of the controlled unit trusts. There are no
restrictions on the rights of the unitholders (o withdraw their investment.

Trustee activities
Suncorp Superannuation Pty Ltd. a controlled entity of the Company, acts as trustee in relation 10 varions superannuation
policies jssued by the Company. Arrangements are in place 1o ensure that the activities of Suncorp Superannuation Pty

l.td are managed separately.
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Consolidated

2006 2008
Sm Im
SECMENT INFORMATION
Total revenue (note 8)
Life insurance activities 787.1 675.1
Non-life insurance activities 1,060.5 204
Elimination of controlled entities (856.3) 71.3
991.3 767.0
Operating profit before income tax
Life insurance activities 134.5 121.1
Non-life insurance activities 63 4.2
Elimination of controlled entities (3.0) 79.9
137.8 205.2
Assets
Life insurance activities 4,632.8 3.988.5
Non-life insurance activities 5,874.6 §91.7
Elimination of controlled entities (4,344.3) (75.0)
6,163.1 4.805.2

he Company operales predominantly within Queensland, New South Wales and Victoria. Non-life insurance activities
include the provision of superannuation administration services and funds rmanagemenl products.

36. STATUTORY FUNDS SEGMENT INFORNMATION

(A) Statutory Funds Information

Details of the separate Statutory Funds established 10 account for the different types of lifc insurance business written

by the Company are as follows:
Types of Policies Wrilten

No. I Statutory Fund

Fully or partially capital Individual:
guaranteed, ordinary and
superannuation business

Group:

Annuities:

No: 2 Statutory Fund
Investment-linked ordinary and Individual:
superannualion business

Group:

\nnuitics:

Mazjor Products

Whole of Life. Endowmeni, Term Life, Investment Account,

Crisis Care, Disability
Group Life, Managed Fund

Immediate, Deferred

Investment-Tinked products
Investment-Jinked products

Investment-linked: Deferred

All policies writien and maior products are offered witivn Austraia only.
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36.STATUTORY FUNDS SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(B) Abbreviated Income Statement at fund and category level for the year ended 30 June 2006

Non-Investment Investment
Linked Linked
Statutory Fund Statvtory Fund Total Statutory  Sharcholder
No 1 No 2 Funds Fund
2006 2006 2006 2006
$m Sm $m $m
Premium revenue 133.7 23 136.0 -
Outwards reinsurance expense (27.8) - (27.8) -
105.9 23 108.2 -
Investment revenue 3443 251.2 595.7 7.9
Other revenue 10.8 - 10.8 16.7
Total revenue 461.2 253.5 714.7 24.6
Claims expense (77.9) - (77.9) -
Reinsurance recoveries 20.0 - 20.0 -
(57.9) - (57.9) R
Operating expenses (67.6) (18.9) (86.5) (18.8)
Increase in net insurance contract tiabifities (288.9) - (288.9) -
Increase in investiment contract habilites - (207.9) (207.9) -
(Increase) in policy owner retained profits 55.2 - 55.2
Tolal operaling expenses (359.2) (226.8) (386.0) (18.8)
Operating profit (loss) before income tax
(expense)/benefit 102.0 26.7 128.7 5.8
Income tax (expense) benefit (55.7) (18.8) (74.5) (0.7)
Profit from ordinary activities after income
tax (expense) benefit 463 79 34.2 5.1
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36. STATUTORY FUNDS SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(B) Abbreviated Income Statement at fund and category Jevel for the year ended 30 June 2005

Premium revenue
Outwards reinsurance expense

Investment revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue

Claims expense
Reinsurance recoveries

Operating expenscs

Decrease in nel policy liabilities

(Increasc) ie policy owner retained profits

Tota) operiiing expenses

Operating profit (loss) before income tax
(expense)/benefit

Income tax (expense) benefit atiributable 1o
operating profit (loss)

Profit from ordinary activitics after income
tax (expensc) benefit

Non-Investment Investment
Linked Linked
Statutory Fund Statutory Fund Total Statutory  Shareholder
No 1 No 2 Funds Fund
2005 2005 2005 2005
Sm $m $m Im
111.8 1.6 1134 -
(29.6) - (29.6) -
82.2 1.6 83.8 -
341.8 169.0 510.8 5.6
7.5 - 7.5 15.9
431.5 170.6 602. 1 21.5
(73.2) - (73.2) -
21.9 - 219 -
(51.3) - (51.3) -
(61.7) (21.7) (83.4) (13.7)
(248.9) (129.5) (378.4) -
243 - 24.3 -
(337.6) (151.2) (488.8) (13.7)
93.9 19.4 113.3 7.8
(51.8) (10.3) {62.1) (2.0)
42,1 9.1 S1.2 5.8
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36.STATUTORY FUNDS SECMENT INFYORMATION (Continued)

(C) Abbreviated Balance Sheet at fund and category lcvel for the year ended 30 June 2006

Equities securiticy
Debt securities

private sector - unsecured
Loans and advances
Unit trusts
Other directly held assets
Total investment assets
Policy liabilities ceded
Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Gross policy liabilities
Policy owner retained profits
Other liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Share capital
Capital transfers

Retained profits
TOTAL EQUITY

Non-fnvestment  fnvestment
Linked Linked
Statutory Fund Statutory  Total Statutory Shareholder
No 1 Fund No 2 Funds Fund
2006 2006 2006 2006
Sm Sm $m $m
2,713.7 1,551.8 4.265.5 15.9
2.713.7 1.551.8 4.265.5 15.9
60.6 - 60.6 -
169.4 104.8 2742 75.4
2,943.7 1,656.6 4,600.3 94.3
2,348.5 1.557.9 3,906.4 -
270.2 - 270.2 -
209.6 40.4 250.0 23.9
2,828.3 (,598.3 4.426.6 23.9
1154 S8.3 173.7 70.4
- - - 39.0
5.2 24.6 29.8 (29.8)
110.2 33.7 143.9 61.2
115.4 583 173.7 70.4
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For the year ended 30 June 2006

36.STATUTORY FUNDS Si.GMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(C) Abbreviated Balance Sheet at fund and category level for the year ended 30 June 2005

Equitics securities
Debt sccurities

private sector - unsecured
Loans and advances
Unit trusts
Other dircctly held assets
Total investment assets
Policy liabilities ceded
Othcr assets
TOTAL ASSETS

Gross policy liabilities
Policy owner retained profits
Other liabilities

TOTAI. LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Share capital
Capital transfers
Retained profits
TOTAL EQUITY

Non-tnvestment  Investment
Linked Linked
Statutory Fund Statutory  Total Statatory Shareholder
No 1 Fund No 2 Funds Fund
2005 2005 2005 2005
Sm $m Sm $m

- - - 0.1

54.4 13.8 68.2 0.7

12.5 - 12.5 -
2,358.0 1.246.6 3,604.6 9.4
0.6) "~ (0.2) (0.8) -
2,424.3 1,260.2 3,684.5 20.2
433 - 433 -

157.9 67.2 225.1 61.9
2,625.5 1,327 .4 39529 82.1
2,003.3 1.240.8 3,244.) -
323.5 - 323.5 -
170.3 15.7 186.0 19.2
24971 1.256.5 3,753.6 192
128.4 70.9 199.3 62.9

- - - 39.0
5.2 24.6 298 (29.8)

123.2 46.3 169.5 53.7
128.4 70.9 199.3 62.9
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37.CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Country of Class of
Incorporation Share 2006 2005
’ ) %
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limitcd Australia Ordinary
Subsidiaries ‘"
SIP Super Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Suncorp Financial Services Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Suncorp Superannuation Pty Ltd Australia Ordinary 100 100
Managed Investment Schemes
During the year the consolidaled entity recognised control for the following: 2006 2005
% Yo
Suncorp Investmem Management Global Macro Tactical Asset Allocation Trust (gained control 15
December 2005) 64 .
Suncorp [nvestment Managemem Australian Property Trust (gained control 1 January 2006) o 69 -

Control had been recognised for the following during the year ended 30 June 2003 and continucs to be recognised:

2006 2005
Yo %

Suncorp Investment Management Australian Equities Trust “ 75 8S
Suncorp Investment Management Australian Fixed Interest Trust 89 91
Suncorp lavestment Management World Equitics Trust 67 67
Suncorp Investment Management Australian Cash Trust*®’ 71 75
Suncorp Investment Management World Fixed Interest Trust 92 94
Controlled entities of Suncorp Investment Management World Fixed Interest Trust

87 88

- Suncorp [nvestment Management Mortgage Backed Trust

Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited holds a 50.56% interest in the Suncorp [nvestment Management Imputation
Trust which has not been consolidated. Control is recocnised at a Suncomp-Mertway Ltd group level only, as control
only exists where there is greater than 50% ownership and a Group subsidiury (Suncorp Metway Investiment
Management Limited) is the responsibility cntity.

Notes

(1) These investments form part of the investment assels.

{(2) Suncomp Life & Superannuation Limited holds a 64.16% interest, GIO General Limited holds a 14.61% mercst and
Suncorp-Metway Ltd holds a 17.99% interest in the Suncorp Invesiment Management Globa) Macro Tacucal Asset
Allgeation Trust.

(3) Suncorp Life & Supcrannuation Limited holds a 68.72% interesl, GO General Limited holds a 7 18% interest and
Suncorp-Metway Lid holds a 2.98% interest in the Suncorp Investmenl Management Australian Property Trust.

(4) Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited holds a 74.82% interest in, (:10 General Limited holds 3 2 34%; interest and
Suncorp Metway Insurance Ltd holds a 3.47% interest in the Suncorp Investment Management Australian Equities
Trust.

(5) Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited holds a 67.06% interest, GIO General Limited holds a 7.87% interest and
Suncorp Metway Insurance Ltd holds a 6.79% interest in the Suncorp In cstment Management World Equities Trust.
(6) Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited holds a 71.25% interest and S.imcoip Metway Insurance Lid holds a 21.07%
interest in the Suncorp [nvestment Management Australian Cash Trust

) I
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38. RFLATED PARTIES
Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel (“KMP”) compensation is pravided by the ultimate parent company. Suncorp-Metway Ltd
(non-executive directors) and a related party of the ullimate parent company (executiy e directors and executives). The
total ol this compensation is as follows:

Company Consolidated
2006 2005 2006 2005
S S s 3
Shori-term employee benefits 10,973,188 10,308,891 10,973,188 10,308,891
Long-lerm employee benefits (833) 27.769 (833) 27,769
Post-employment benefits 138,085 201,256 138,085 201,256
Termination benefits - - - -
Equity compensation benefits 3,783,015 2,647,401 3,783,015 2.647.401

14,893,453 13,185317 14.893,455 13,185.317

The ullimate parent entity has determined the compensation of KMPs in accordance with their roles within the entire
Suncorp-Metway Ltd Group. Employee service contracts do not include any compensation, including bonuses,
specifically related to the role of KMP of the Company and to allocate a figure may in fact be misleading. There < no
link between KMP compensation angd the financial results of the Company. Therefore, as there is no reasonable basis
for allocating a KMP compensalion amount (60 the Company, the entirc compensation of the KMPs has been disclosed

above.

Other Key management personnel transactions
Transactions with directors and executives are conducted on arm’s length terms and conditions, and are deemed trivial

or domestic in nature. These transactions are in the nature of personal investment and life insurance policies.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director, executive or Lheir related parties has entered into a material
contract with the Company during the reporting period, and there were no material contracts involving directors or a
director related entity subsisting at the end of the reporting period.

Identity of related parties

The consolidated entity has a related party relationship with its subsidiarics (see not2 37), its key management
personnel (refer to disclosures for key management personnel on preceding pages) and other entities within the wholly-
owned group (which consists of Suncorp-Metway Ltd and its wholly owned and controlled entities). The inmediate
parent entity and the ultimaie parent entity in the wholly-owned group is Suncorp-Metway Lid.

Other related parties
Key management personnel related parties
A number of key management personnel hold positions in other entities that result in them having control or significant

influence over the financial or operating;, policies of these entities

A number of these entities transacted with the Company or its subsidianies (n the reporting period. The Lerms and
conditions of the transactions with the other related parties were no more favourable than those available, or which
might reasonably be expecied to be available. on similar iransacuons o non-key management personnel related enuties
on an arm’s length basis.

Mr J D Story is the non-executive Chairman of the firm Corrs Chambers Wesigarth Lawyers, which from time to time
rendercd legal services to (he Company in the ordinary course of business  Fees patd (0 the tinn during the financial
year amounted to S49.666 (2005: $44.365). There are no amounts currently payable at balance date to Corrs Chambers

Westgarth Lawyers (2005 ml).

Mr Martin D I Kriewaldt provided advice to Aon Holdings Australian Limited and Allens Arthur Robinson Lawyers.
Those firms provided insurance brokerage and legal services respectively. to the Suncorp Group. These services are
provided under normal terms and conditions.

= e = e e — }J_E;L- i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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38. RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Other related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and related parties in the wholly owned group consisted of advances made and

repaid, dividends received and paid. insurance premiums received and paid. fees received and paid for administrative,
property and portfolio management services and interest reccived and paid.  All these transactions were on a normal
commercial basis except that some advances may be interest froe

The aggregate amounts included in the determination of profit before tax that resulted from transactions with related

parties are:
Company
2006 2005
$m Sm
Distribution fee income:
controlled entities (1.1) (2.2
(.1 (2.2)
Management fee income:
controlled entities 2.1 (2.9)
controlled entities of the parent entity (12.6) (10.8)
distributions from controlled unit trusts (357.7 (307.7)

(372.4) (320.9)

Administration expenses:

parent entity S1.7 438
controllcd entity 5.3 2.0
controlied entitics of the parent entity 15.4 13.6

72.4 594

Dividends paid or due and payable
controlled entity 3.0

The aggregate amounts receivable from, and payable 10, in each class of related partics at balance date are as follows:

Company
2006 2005
Sm Sm
Loans, advances and other receivablcs:
parent entity (note 135) 1.1 5.3
controlled entities of the ultimate parent entity (note 13) 5.7 5.5
controlled cntities (note 15) 16 -
controlled unit trusts - distributions receivable 181.6 161.7
190.0 172.5
Deposits and short term borrowings:
parent entity (notc 19) 15.8 13.2
parcit entity - transfer of provi-ion of cuirent income tax under tax
sharing agreecment (note 19) 2208 40.6
controlled entities of the vltimate parent entity (note 19) 0.4 -
controlicd entities (note 19) - 1.1
39.0 34.9
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39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

40.

Dividends
For dividends declured after 30 June 2006, see note 25.

Other than the matters discussed above, there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and (he
date of this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors off
the consolidated entity, to affect significantly the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of thosc operations. or
the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future financial years.

EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

As stated in note [(a), the consolidated entity has prepared these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
AIFRS. As these consolidated fimancial statements are for the first year reported in accordance with AIFRS, it is
necessary to explain how the transition from the previous GAAP 10 AIFRS affected the previousiv reported financial
position, financizl performance and cash flows since 30 June 2004.

The consolidaied entity transitioned to AIFRS on { July 2004. In preparing the opening AIFRS balance sheets,
comparative information for the ycar ended 30 June 2005 has been restated using AIFRS with curtain exceptions. An
explanation of the impact of transition to AIFRS of the standards applicd to the comparative information is set out in

Parl A of this note.

As permitted by AASB | First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards. the consolidated entity has elected not to apply AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation, AASB 139 Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement, AASB 4 Insurance Contracts and
AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts to the comparative information, and therefore thesc standards apply from | July
2005 An explanation of the impact of these standards on the transition to AIFRS is set oul in Part B of this note.

This note includes reconciliations and accompanying notes that set out the effect of the transition to AIFRS for changes
in accounting pohicies at | July 2004, 30 June 2005 and | July 2005. The balance sheet reconciliations split the AIFRS
transition adjustments belween reclassification and remeasurement adjusiments — ‘reclassification’ represents the
reclassification of amounts from their previous GAAP balance sheets lines to the appropriate AIFRS Balance Sheet
lines; ‘remeasurement’ represents adjusiments due to a change in the measurement basis from the previous GAAP. The
income statements reconciliations show the previous GAAP amounts, adjustment items and restaled AIFRS amounts.

Part A: AIFRS adjustmeats in the comparative period
“The restated balance sheet of the Company and the consolidated entity at | July 2004 and 30 June 2005 and the
restated (hcone statement of the Company and the consolidated entity for the year ended 30 June 2005 are =l oul on

the following pages.
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40. EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSJTION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO

FIMNANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Part A: AIFRS adjustments in the comparative period (Continued)

Table L: Restated Balance Sheets at 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005

Note
Total assets under previous GAAP
AIFRS transition impacts - remeasurement:
Deferral of incremental acquisition costs b
Removal of EMVONA c
Adjust subsidiary valuation 10 cost 4
Consolidation of additional managed
investment schemes ¢
Comparative total assets under AIFRS
Total Liabilitics under previous GAAP
A{FRS wansition impacts - remeasurement;
Income tax - impact of UIG 1052 a
Decrease in deferred tax liability arising
from removal of FPMVONA a
Decrcase in deferred tax liability arising
trom valuation of subsidiaries to cost a
Inceease in deferred tax liability arising
from deferral of acquisition costs a

Comparative total liabtlitics under AIFRS

Comparative net assets under AIFRS

Total equity under previous GAAP
AIFRS transition impacts - contributed equiry
AIFRS transition impacts - retaincd earnings
AIFRS transition impacts - outside equity interests

Total comparative equity under AIFRS

INTERNATIONAL
Consolidated Company
) July 2004 30 June 2005 I July 2004 30 June 2003
$m Sm Im Sin

3,964 4,807 3,489 4,006
3 4 3 4
(i5) (18) (15) (18)
- - (4 €)

. 12 - .
3,952 4,805 3473 3,988
3,372 3,806 3.239 3,726
2 S 2 5

(%) S (5) (&)
) (H Q) {H

1 ] 1 |
3.369 3.806 3.236 3,726
583 999 237 262
592 1,001 250 280
9 (I (13) (18)

- 9 . R

583 999 237 262

Table 2: Restated Income Statements for the year ended 30 June 2005

Net profit as reported unduer previous GAAP

AIFRS transition adjustments (0 retained earnings:
Difference between tax recharge and tax expense
Deferral o) incremental acquisition costs
Removal of I'MVONA
Adjust subsidiary valuation to cost
Consolidation of additional managed investment
scheme

Comparative net profit under AIFRS

Nole

o a oo

Year ended 30 June 2005

Consolidated Company
fm fm

132 62
(2) (2)

1 |
(3) 3)
- (2)

2 .

140 57
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40.

EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continuved)

Part A: ATFRS adjustments in the comparative period (Continued)

Table 3: flquity reconciliations ac 1 July 2004 and 30 June 2005

A summary of the eftect of the above adjustments on equily is set out below.

Consolidated Company
I July 2004 30 June 2005 1 July 2004 30 June 200S
Note $m Sm $m $m

Deferral of incremental acquisition
cosls 3 4 3 4
Removal of EMVONA (15) (18) (15) (18)
Adjust subsidiary valuition to cost - - ) (4)
Consolidation of additional managed
investment schemes - 12 - -
Income tax - impact of U1G 1052 (2) (5) ) . (%)
Income tax - impact of other
accounting standards S S 5 5
Tota!l parent entity 1nterest 2] ) (13) (18)
Outside cquity intcrests - (9) - -
Total equity 9 (L) (13) (18)

(a) Incomc 1ax

Under AIFRS, AASB 112 /ncome Taxes uses a “balance sheet approach™ of calculating tncome tax balances rather
than the “Income Statement approach™ applied under previous GAAP. The balance sheet approach recognises
deferred tax balances when there is a difference between the carrying value of an asset or liability and its tax base.

Impact from adopting AASB 112:

The tax adjustments for the consolidated entity on | July 2004 comprise an increase to deferred tax habilities of
$0.8m and an increuse in gross policy liabilitics of $0.1m, as well as a decrease in unvested policyholder benefits of
$0.7m and a decrease in retained earnings of $0.2m. This is due to the prohibition on discounting cenain life
insurance tax assets and liabiltes.

At 30 June 2005, the tax adjustments for the consolidated entity comprise an increase to deferred tax liabilities of
$1.3m. as well as a decrease in unvested policyholder benefits of $0.9m and a decrease in retained earnings of $0 4m.

For AIFRS comparative purposes, the impact on the consolidaied entily '~ tax expense is an increase I 1ax expense of
$0.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2005.

The results of the Company are impacted by the saine adjustments as the consolidut:d entity.

Impact from adopting other AIFRS <tandards:

The impact on the consolidated entity of the change in basj« and the transition adjustmenis required by the application
of AIFRS standards other than AASB 112 on the delerred tax balances and the previously reported tax expensc is 2
decrease in deterred tax liabilities of $4.7m and an increase in retained earnings of $4 7m.

Tiiz impact of the change in basis on the ax expense for the financial year ended 30 June 2005 for the consolidated
For AIFRS comparative purposes, the impact on the consolidated entity’s tax expense is a decrease of $5.8 million

ior the year ended 30 June 2005.

The adjustiments in respect of the Company are for the same amounts respectively.
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10. EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Part A: AIFRS adjustments in the comparative period (Continued)

Impact from adopting UIG 1052:

UlG 1052 Tax Consolidations Accounting provides guidance on the recognition of tax amounts under the tax
consolidation regime in the AIFRS framework. UIG 1052 requires the consolidated entity to recognise its own tax
balances directly, with the current tax liability or asset to be assurmed by the head entity via an intercompany loan,
equity contribution or distribution, depending on the tax funding arrangements. Historically, the ultimate parent
entity recognised all tax balances and charged the consolidated entity an allocation of the current lax liability, based
upon the consolidated entity’s contribution to the Suncorp Group profit, as an income tax expense in the consolidated
enlity and an income tax expense recovery in the ultimate parent entity.

In wransitioning 1o AFRS, the consolidated cntity must retrospectively apply UIG 1052 as if it was in ptace from the
time of the consolidated entity’s entry into tax consolidation. Accordingly, at | July 2004 the consolidaled entity is
required 10 restate tax balances in the balance sheets. and any difTerence between the current tax Lability (if
calculated ignoring tax consolidation) and what was previously recharged is accounted for in equity.

The impact of UIG 1052 on the consolidated entity at 1 July 2004 is:
o A deferred tax asset of $0.7mitlion and a deferred tax liability of $41 million were recognised:;

* Retained earnings decreased by $1.3 million due to the diflerence between the prior year tax expense and the
previous kit expense recharaed by the ultimate pacent entity: and

* There is no additional impact on contributed equity as the tax rechare under previous GAAP equals the
consolidated entity’s curtent tax hability.

The impact of UIG 1052 on the consolidated entity at 30 June 2005 is:

= A deferred tax asset of $0.1 million and a deferred tax liabiliry of $57 million were recogmised;

* Retained earnings decreased by $3.8 million due to the difference between tax expense and Lhe tax expense
recharged by the ultimate parent entity; and

*  There is no additional impact on contributed cquity as the tax recharee under previous GAAP equals the
consolidated entity’s current tax liability.

I'he balance sheet of the Company is impacted by the same amounts as the consolidated entity.

(b) Revenue recognition, deferra) of fee income and acquisition expenses

Under AIFRS. AASB 118 Revenuc requires that certain fec tncome and acquisition expenses that were previously
recognised in the convolidated income statement are deferred and recognised in the consolidated balance sheet. and
amortiscd to the consolidated income statement over the period of the service or contract term.

On transition to AIFRS at | July 2004, the consolidated entity increases othei assets by $3.1 milthon, increases
payables and othur liabilities by $0.1 million, and increase retained profits by $3 million At 30 June 20035, further
adjustments results in ihe consolidated entity’s assets increasing by an additional $0.9 million, liabilities decreasing
by $0 I million, with an increase in retained eamings of S1.0m.

fur AIFRS comparative purposes, operating expenses increase and profit before tax decreases by $1.0 million for the
year endect 30 June 2005.

(¢) Excess of nct market value of interests in lile insurance subsidiaries over their recognised amounts
("EMVONA™)

Under AGAAP, AASB 1038 Life Insurance Business allows a Life Insurer 10 recognise the excess of net market
value of an interest in a subsidiary over the net assets of the subsidiary, as an assel in its consolidated balance sheet
and movements in the asset in the income statement. Under AIFRS, revised AASB V038 Life Insurance Contracts in
conjunction with AASB [38 /mangible Assets docs not alfow the asset to be recognised in the balance sheet or the
movement in the asset to be recognised in the income statement.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
L For the year ended 30 June 2006
40. EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Part A: AIFRS adjustments in the comparative period (Continued)

On transition to AIFRS, the EMVONA asset was written back resulting in a decrease (o assets and retained eamings
for the consolidated entity of $15.1m at 1 July 2004. The adjustments in respect of the Company are a decrease to
assets and rctained eamings of $15.1m. For the year ended 30 June 2005, the additional AGAAP EMVONA of
$2.9m recognised in the income statement was written back resulting in a decrease in assets of $18.0m and decrease
in retained earnings of $18.0m for AIFRS comparative disclosure purposes. The adjustments in respect of the
Company are a decrease to assets and retained earnings of $18.0m.

(d) Consolidation of investment in subsidiaries

Under AGAAP, AASB 1038 Life Insurance Business requires a Life Insurer 1o recognise assets at net market value.
Any changes in net market values are recognised in the income staternent. The revised AASB 1038 Life /nsurance
Contracts in conjunction with AASB 127 Consolidation and Sepurate Financial Statemenis allows investments in

subsidiaries 10 be accounted for at cost.

On transition to AIFRS at | July 2004, the assets of the Company were reduced by $3.8m, and retained earnings were
reduced by a corresponding amounl. For the year ended 30 June 2005, the additiona! recognised AGAAP movement
in net market value of $1.7m wil) be wrien back resulting in a decrease in assets and profit of $5.5m for AJFRS

comparative disclosure purposes.
There is no impact on the consolidated entity.
(e) Consolhdation of additional managed investment schemes

Under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statemeims the consolidated entity will consolidate managced
investments schemes where ownership inlerest exceeds 75%. It will also consolidate managed invesiment schemes
where ownership in the scheme is between 50% and 75% and the consolidaled entity has the ability to control the

trust through its position as a responsible entity.

Under AGAAP, managed investment schemes were consolidated into SLSL when ownership interest exceeded 75%

Restated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2005

AASB 107 Cash Flow Statements requires that specific items disclosed as investing or financing cash flows under
previous GAAP are now included in the determination of operating cash flows., AIFRS does not alter the net cash
increase or decrease, but changes the reported categories of operating, investing or financing cash flows. The was no
impact from these reclassifications for the year ended 30 June 2005,
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the year ended 30 June 2006

40.

EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continned)

Part B: AIFRS impacts on 1 July 200§
The impacts of the significant changes in accounting policy from adopting AASB 132, AASB 139, AASB 4. and
AASB 1038 from 1 July 2005 arc set out below.

Table 4: Restated Balance Sheets at | July 2005

Consolidated Company

Note $m $m

Total assets under AIFRS at 30 June 2005 4,805 3,988
AIFRS transition impacts - remeasurement:

Adjustment to valuations of investment

assets i 3 5

Deferred tax asset resulting from

adjustment to valuation of insurance i ! |

Deferral of acqusition costs for statutory

funds i 22 22

Dcferred tax asset arising from the deferral

of fee income for the statutory funds v 2 2
Total aszets under AIFRS at | July 2005 4,833 4018
Total liabilities nnder AIFRS at 30 Junc 2005 3,806 3.726

AIFRS rransition impacts - reclassification:

Outside bencficial interests and retained

eamings v 729
ALFRS transition impacls - remeasurement:

Deferred tax liability arising from the

adjustment to valuation of investment i l |
Increase in unvested policyholder benefits

arising from adjustment to vatuation of

investment assets i 2 2
Adjustment (o valualion of investment

conlract habitities and life insurance

contract habilities i 47 47

Deferred tax liability arising [rom the

deferral of acquisition costs for the i 6 6

Deferral of fee income for statutory fund- v 7 7

Provision for stamp duty N 2 2
Total liabilities under AIFRS at | July 2005 4.600 3.791
Net assets under AIFRS at [ July 2005 233 228

Tutal equity under previous GAAP at 30 June

2005 1,001 280
ALFRS transibon impacts - contributed equily - -
AIFRS transition impacts - relained eamings (EX)) (32)
AIFRS transition impacts - outside equity interests (731) -

Total equity under AIFRS ar | July 2005 233 228

(1) Financial in<trument measwtiemeni

Under AIFRS. AASB 139 requires that financial asscts classified as at fair value through profit and loss be measured
at bid price. rather than at mid price with an allowance for selling costs as required under previous GAAP. On | July
2003, this change in measurement basis resulted in an increase to the consolidated entity’s investment securities of
$3.1 million (Company. $5.1 million) and retained earnings of $0.3 million (Company: $2.3 million). as well as an
increase 10 unvested policyholder benetits of $1.9 million (Company: $1.9 million) and an increase to deterred tax
liabilities of $0.9 million (Company: $0.9 million).
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the pear ended 30 June 2006

40. EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO IMNTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continved)

Part B: AJFRS impacts on  July 2005 (Continued)

(1) Valuation of investment contract and life insurance contract liabilities

Under AIFRS there are a number of adjustments required to the valuations of investment contract and life insurance
contract liabilities due to the following:

o Under AGAAP, AASB 1038 Life Insurance Business deals with the accounting for a life insurance business. Under

ATFRS, revised AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts designates products into either life insurance contracts or life
investment contracts. The consolidated entity has life insurance products that are designated as insurance and

investment contracts.

Products that meet the definition of a life insurance contract will continue to use the Margin on Services valuation for
policy liabilities under revised AASB 1038. Products that meet the definition of a life investment contact have two
components, a financial instrument clement and a management services element.

Where the asset value and related tax changes described in (i) above relate to investment coutracts, there is a
corresponding change in the valuation of the invesiment contract and life insurance contract habilities.

Under AGAAP, the discount rate applied in the valvation of the investmeni contract and life insurance contract
liabilities was based on the expected market rewrn on investments that backed those contracts. Under AIFRS, where
investmemt contract and hfe insurance contract liabilities are not linked to the performance of investments that back
those contracts, a risk-free discount rate must be used. The risk-free discount rate is determined by the Appointed
Actuary based on the ( smmonwealth government bond rate.

Under AGAAP. the deferred tax liability in the life statutory funds was requited to be discounted to present value.
Under AIFRS, deferred tax balances cannot be discounted and the deferred tax balance has been adjusted. The
measurement of life insurance contract liabilities has also been adjusted under AIFRS to reflect the undiscounted
deferred tax amounts. However the impact of the removal of deferred tax discounting in respect of investment
contracts is not reflected in investment contract liabilities.

Under AGAAP deferred acquisition costs was included in policy tiabilities. Under AIFRS deferred acquisition costs
are reported on the face of the balance sheets. Refer (iii) below for yimpact.

On 1 July 2005. these changes resulted in an increase to the consolidated entity's policy liabilities of $46.5 muilion,
an increasc to Jcferred tax asset of $0.9 million and a decrease to retained earnings of $45.6 miliion. The adjustments
for the Company are the same as for the consolidated entily.

(¢n)  Deferral of acquisition costs on investment contracts

Under AGAAP, all acquisition costs incurred in relation to acquiring new life insurance policies were deferred as part
of investment contract angd lifc insurance contract liabilities and subsequently recognised in the income statements
over the life of the contract.

Undcr AFFRS. the treatment differs for those contracts that are designated as investment contracts. Under AIFRS,
acquisilion costs ansing in relation to investment contracts can only be deferved to the extent they are incremental and
directly anributed to sccuring the individual contructs. Otherwise costs are recognised and expensed as they ure
incurred. There is no change in the recognition and measurcment of deferred acquisition costs o life insurance
contracts.

On | July 2005, this change resulted in an increase lo the consolidated entity’s deferred acquisition costs asset of
$21.8 millien, an increase to deferred tax liability of $6.5 million and an increase to retained earnings of $135.3
million. The adjustments for the Company are the same as for the consolidated entity.

() Defemal of tee income on investment contracts

Under AIFRS. the management services element of investment contracts is recognised as revenue under AASI3 118
Revenue, with certain fee income being deferred and recognised as a liability on the balance sheet.

On | July 2003. this change resulted in an increase 1o the consolidated entity’s deferred revenue liability of $6.9
million, and increase to deferred tax asset of $2 million and a decrease to retained camings of $4.9 million, The
adjustments for the Company arc the same as for the consolidated entity.
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

L For the year ended 30 June 2006

40. EXPLANATION OF THE TRANSITION TO AUSTRALIAN EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Part B: AIFRS impacts on  July 2005 (Continued)

(v) Balance sheet reclassification

On | July 2003, the application of AASB 132 requires certain assets and liabilitics be reclassified to balance sheet
categories that are different from previous GAAP. Under AGAAP, the amounts duc (o unitholders in the underlying
financial statements of a unit trust were classified as outside equity interests. Under AIFRS, this amount is classified
as a liability owing to outside beneficial interests. When a controlled onil trust is consolidated under AIFRS, amounts
previously recorded as outside equily interesis 10 exlernal equity holders of the trust are now included as a liabiliry in

the consolidated balance sheet.

The significant reclassification for the consolidated entity in addition to the adjustments above is to increase payables
and other liabilities by $729 million and to decrcuse outside equity interests by $731 million angd increase retained
earnings by $2 million.



SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In 1he opinion of the Directors of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited (‘the Company ')

(a) the Fnancial statements and notes, set out on pages 6 10 72, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,

including:

i. giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the consolidated entity as at 30 June 2006
and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for the year ended on

that date; and

ii. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 200); and

(b) there arc reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due

and payable;

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

John D St
Chairman

7" John F Mulgéhy
Managing Director

Brisbane
I September 2006
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SUNCORP LIFE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED
APPOINTED ACTUARY’S STATEMENT

In accordance with the requirements of the Life Insurance Act 1995 (“the Life Act”), I state that in my opinion.

(a) the value of the policy liabilitics and the solvency of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited (“the Company™)
have been delermined using methods and assumptions consistent with the Actuarial Standards;

(b) the allocation and distribution of the profits of the stawtory funds of the Company have been mad-. in accordance
wiili Division S and 6 of Part 4 ¢f the Life Act and the Constitution of the Company; and

(¢) proper records have been kept by the Company from which its poticy liabilities and solvency have been able to be
properly determined.

D v

Rowan T Ward
Appointed Actuary
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited

Brisbane
! Seplember 2006
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INDEPENDZNT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
SUNCORP LTVE & SUPERANNUATION LIMITED

Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the income statements, slatements of recognised income and expense,
balance sheets, statements of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors®
declaration set out on pages 6 to 73 for both Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited (“the Company”’) and
Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited and its controlled entities (the “Consolidated Entity™), for the year
ended 30 June 2006, The Consolidated Entity comprises both the Company and the entitjes it controlled
during that year.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and truc and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2007. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and intemal controls that are designed to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the financial report.
The directors are also responsible for prepering the relevant reconciling information regarding the
adjustments required under the Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1 First-time Adopiion of Australian
equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards.

Audit approach

We conducied an independent audit in order to express an opinion lo the members of the Company, Our
audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. The nature of an audit is
influenced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of
internal control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit
cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents fairly, in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory
financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our understanding of the
Company’s and the Consolidated Entity’s financial position, and of their performance as represented by the
results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

e cxamining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report, and

* assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effecliveness of management's controls over financia) reporiing when determining
the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to providi assurance on internal

controls.
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Audit opinion
In our opinion, the (inancial report of Suncorp Life & Superannuation Limited is in accordance with:
a) the Corporations Act 2001, mcluding:

i giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and Consolidated Entity’s financial position as at
30 June 2006 and of their performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

ii. complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations 200];
and

b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Auslralia.

ERMGCa
KPMG

Brian Greig
Partner

Brisbane
1 September 2006
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